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RTRAN 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 
CLA PROPERTIES, LLC, 
 
                    Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
SHAWN BIDSAL, 
 
                    Respondent. 
 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) 
 

 
 
  CASE#:  A-19-795188-P 
 
  DEPT.  XXXI       
 
 
 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JOANNA S. KISHNER, 

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2019 

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING: 

 ALL PENDING MOTIONS 

 
 

APPEARANCES: 
 

  For the Petitioner:    LOUIS E. GARFINKEL, ESQ. 
      
  For the Respondent:    JAMES E. SHAPIRO, ESQ. 
 
 
 
 
RECORDED BY:  Sandra Harrell, Court Recorder 

Case Number: A-19-795188-P

Electronically Filed
10/22/2019 4:49 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, September 10, 2019 

[Case called at 9:07 a.m.] 

 

  THE COURT:  Page 4, CLA Properties LLC, 795188.  

Counsel, could I have appearances please? 

  MR. GARKINKEL:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Louis 

Garfinkel on behalf of Petitioner, CLA Properties, LLC. 

  MR. SHAPIRO:  Jim Shapiro on behalf of Shawn Bidsal. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So counsel, we’ve got issues here too.  

So, here’s what this Court understands.  This Court understands that only 

one of the parties, counsel for Bidsal, complied with EDCR 2.20 and 

EDCR 7.26.  Is that correct? 

  MR. SHAPIRO:  I’m counsel for Bidsal, so I’ll agree with you 

that I complied, but I’m not sure what those rules are, so -- but I don’t 

have them memorized. 

  THE COURT:  Counsel -- well -- okay.  CLA, do you contend 

that you complied timely with EDCR 2.20 and 7.26? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:   Your Honor, if you’re talking about 

whether or not I provided courtesy copies to the Court in a timely manner, 

the answer is no, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  You all can look down at your counsel 

tables -- the rules are right there. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, I’m -- I admit it. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  You know, I haven’t been in your 
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courtroom for quite some time, it’s been a number of years.  And 

because of the electronic filing -- 

  THE COURT:  Oh, oh -- 

  MR. GARKINKEL:  I’ve um -- because of the electronic filing, 

I’m used to the Courts not wanting paper.  So that’s my fault, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Oh counsel, counsel, counsel, counsel, 

counsel. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  I’m taking responsibility -- 

  THE COURT:  Counsel, counsel -- 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  - for it, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  I am sure you are not stating -- okay -- 

and I’m giving you each a moment.  Those rules are sitting right there.  

The rules are the rules.  Everyone needs to comply with the rules.  

Anyone asserting that EDCR 2.20(g) and EDCR 7.26 are not alive and 

well and have been in -- around for over a decade?  Correct? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Absolutely, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  So, everyone needs to comply with 

them.  Correct? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Correct, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Now, I’m sure you’re also not 

contending that -- okay -- are you somehow contending that you don’t 

need to comply with them? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Not at all, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Because I’m sure you’re also not 

contending that somehow -- did you contend to my law clerk that I’m the  
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only department that requires hard copies? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  No, Your Honor.  What I said was, was 

that most of the -- most of the Courts that I’ve been dealing with lately 

have basically told me -- 

  THE COURT:  Ohh no. 

  MR. GARFINKEL: -- that they -- 

  THE COURT:  Go ahead. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  -- they don’t -- they do not want hard 

copies.  I said, the last one that I dealt with who wanted copies was 

Judge Denton. 

  THE COURT:  Okay. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  So, I’m just -- so Your Honor, I’m just 

telling you my experience. 

  THE COURT:  So counsel, feel free to let me know what 

department, because counsel, I will tell you -- counsel? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor? 

  THE COURT:  First off -- 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  I’m sorry, what? 

  THE COURT:  As you know, you’re required to comply with 

the rules. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Now, just because a department does not 

sanction you, or a department may still read pleadings, even if a party is 

not compliant, in no way excuses non-compliance, does it counsel? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  No it does not, Your Honor. 
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  THE COURT:  Okay.  I would also like to inform you, as you 

are fully aware, you can always look at department websites, right?  

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  And if you were to look at the department 

websites, you would see the department websites and what each of the 

Judges require.  And if you were to look at those, feel free to name any 

department, because I can tell you what their department website says 

as far as courtesy copies.  So, would you like to know how many 

departments require courtesy copies, pursuant to their websites? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, it’s not necessary, Your 

Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay, because would you like to know how 

many departments, even if you weren’t to take into account their 

websites, that we informally sent out an email yesterday, as a result of 

your statement, just to see if the websites were up to date, and to see of 

the 32 departments, not including the Chief, who doesn’t have a 

department -- right -- who doesn’t have docket? 

  One department that does the murder trials, so it doesn’t have 

a civil docket, right?  Of the 28 departments that responded, right?  Hum, 

let’s see.  Well, you can informally look at all the departments, right? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, I get your point. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Basically, first off, every single 

department -- let’s see -- one does -- department 7 is the Chief.  Okay.  

One of the -- only one department who’s prior law clerks specifically 

requested courtesy copy, but that Judge currently says that they would 
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read it online, right?  But clerks want the courtesy copies, but the Judge 

would be -- could read it online in certain matters.  Okay? 

  Let’s see, how many people would vacate hearings?  You 

know how many departments will vacate hearings if they don’t give their 

courtesy copies?  Several.  So, one, two -- let’s see -- over twenty-three 

of the twenty-eight responding.  So, and several of them will vacate.  So 

counsel, you need to comply with the rules, okay? 

  Do you know how many of the EDCRs -- there actually is -- it’s 

a local rule that is required twice?  Do you realize courtesy copies are so 

important, it’s twice in the EDCR?  Do you know how many times there’s 

actually a rule that’s twice in the EDCR? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  No I don’t, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  You can feel free to check, it’s about the only 

one, because it’s so important.  Okay?  So, here’s the challenge counsel.  

I’m sure you can appreciate, there was -- there’s really two choices for 

this Court here.  You had over a thousand plus pages, right? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  So, how were you anticipating that the Court 

could read those thousand plus pages? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  I thought it would be online, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay, so you think that the Court is just 

supposed to go page by page with its finger?  Click page by page?  You 

realize you did those as seven different documents, right? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  As a .pdf, so that would mean the Court would 
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have to go from one document -- right? -- find it -- actually was it seven or 

eight -- eight documents, right?  No actually nine documents, because 

one of them was filed as a impermissible supplement on the 5th of 

September, after the reply was filed. 

  So, that document -- Court -- so the Court would have to go 

into one of your motions -- right? -- find a reference in your appendix and 

then go out of that document.  Those appendices were not otherwise 

labeled as what they were -- have to find out which of those appendices -

- that potential document may be referenced in, go and find it in there and 

then click page, by page, by page, by page, by page, by page, by page, 

by page, by page -- find that particular reference, then go back into your 

motion -- find it somewhere in your motion, then go to the next citation 

and then the next time that’s cited, then go out of that page -- that 

document -- right? -- then go find it again on wherever it may next be, find 

the next citation, go back into whichever potential one it might be, looking 

through all of those different appendices, find it, and then click through 

each one, page, by page, by page, by page, by page, by page, by page, 

by page.  Some of those appendices are several hundred pages long, 

right, with no way to get it, except for going page by page, by page, by 

page, by page, by page, by page, to try and find where that citation might 

be?  And then go back to the pleading each and every time you 

referenced something?  And would have to do that here at the 

courthouse, potentially do that because you did a per se violation of two 

of the local rules? 

  That’s one choice.  The other choice is if a party does a per se 
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violation of the rules, they don’t get their pleadings read, right? -- or 

considered.  So, those are the two choices for the Court, which -- so you 

can appreciate there’s no possible way that the Court could do that. 

  So, what this Court does is -- this Court has very rosy colored 

glasses.  This Court tries -- because -- feel that this is a community -- 

born and raised in -- and figure that people kind of inadvertently may not -

- you know -- have complied with the rules.  So, I ask my team to give 

people the benefit of the doubt that it was not an intentional violation of 

the rules and tell my law clerks before I hire them -- that guess what, in 

this department they need to do a little bit more work than some other 

departments, potentially, because we try and help out attorneys to extent 

we can legally, ethically, within the rules of judicial conduct, and reach 

out to attorneys sometimes when there’s large documents and give them 

a heads up that they may not have provided the courtesy copies and ask 

them to provide the courtesy copies, and that takes a huge extra amount 

of effort on behalf of my law clerk and they’re very, very busy time trying 

to prepare everything for the Court, and then takes extra time on my 

behalf, because not only they have to do it to prepare, then I have to re-

read everything and wait until that stuff comes in, which takes late nights 

and hours and weekends to do. 

  But my law clerks are willing to it, I’m willing to do it to try and 

help out attorneys with those rosy colored glasses to try and do that and 

then view it as inadvertence because it’s not something that’s substantive 

-- ask them to provide that information so that everything can be read to 

be fully prepared for a hearing.  And you can appreciate then when 
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somebody is not willing to do so, or it doesn’t do it in a positive manner 

and doesn’t do it, or doesn’t provide everything, even when asked, or 

provide something at 2:49 -- only parts of things at 2:49, a day before the 

hearing, when a challenge that is for the Court. 

  And so, this department is likely heading to several other 

departments policies of just vacating the hearing if we don’t get a 

courtesy copy from one side.  And I’m not sure that all your colleagues 

would like that, because most people like the fact that if they’re getting a 

call from the Court, trying to assist them and just viewing it as 

inadvertence rather than willful non-compliance with the local rules. 

  So, I now have to re-evaluate asking my law clerks to, over 

the years, try and be of assistance to counsel -- we’re going to get that 

negative feedback because it takes extra time from them, it takes extra 

time for me to try and do all of that, to try and be of assistance, compliant 

with still being completely fair, impartial, law, equity, to people. 

  But here’s a case of over a thousand plus pages that -- there 

was no possible way, because when you finally even -- last afternoon -- 

late afternoon -- it got logged in on 2:49 ish.  What we got was things that 

said -- a couple of tabs with a pp, a qq, and an rr that didn’t match the 1 

through 121, which this Court had no way of potentially even figuring out 

what was the pp, qq, rr, matching the 1 through 121.  Then saw a 

supplement, which the supplements didn’t match 1 through 121 because 

it said 122, it was a supplemental pleading that had no -- any 

supplemental pleadings have to be approved by the Court.  They can’t 

come in after a reply and so really there’s two choices.  One, for today’s 
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hearing, I only consider what was timely and properly filed, which means 

I only consider what was by  Bidsel, or two, I continue today’s hearing 

and at the continued hearing date I take into account -- the Court makes 

not advisory rulings -- by taking into account multiplying the proceedings.  

Those are the two choices.  Counsel, which is it? 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, I mean obviously I need to 

continue the hearing, okay?  I mean, we scheduled this.  Mr. Shapiro’s 

going away on vacation, so I will get you the -- I will get you our exhibits -

- get them down here so we can continue and have the hearing. 

  So.  I mean, Your Honor, this was a -- this was a heavily 

litigated arbitration and obviously Mr. Shapiro -- we served our petition, 

which was 6 pages.  I attached a copy of the Arbitrator’s award along 

with the operating agreement.  Mr. Shapiro, he went ahead a filed an 

opposition and counter-petition with his thousand pages of exhibits, 

which was 40 pages long, his motion.  We filed a reply -- 

  THE COURT:  And I read all of his because he gave me all of 

his. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  I understand, Your Honor, and that’s my 

oversight.  There’s nothing else I can say.  I mean, I made a mistake and 

I’ll have to pay for it.  So Your Honor, we filed our opposition in a timely 

manner, we set up a briefing schedule, I failed to provide you with 

courtesy copies, that’s my fault, they filed their reply. 

  So obviously if -- Your Honor -- I can -- I can obviously get our 

exhibits down here without a problem and we can reset the hearing.  And 

I apologize to Mr. Shapiro for having to come down today. 
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  THE COURT:  Okay, does that work for you, counsel? 

  MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes, that works for me, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  Okay.  Um, Tuesday or Thursday, set it at a 

9:30 or 10 o’clock slot.  Make sure I have everything.  It’s currently five 

days, that’s what the rule currently says.  As you know, the EDCR is 

going before the Nevada Supreme Court because obviously that the 

changes -- it’s going to be seven days, is what the new rule of course is 

going to say.  Obviously, once the Supreme Court passes it -- so -- 

  MR. SHAPIRO:  So, we’ll contact your chambers and get that 

reset. 

  THE COURT:  You don’t need to contact chambers, you just 

need to set a new -- 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  Oh, sure. 

  THE COURT: -- date. 

  MR. GARFINKEL:  And, Your Honor, I will get your exhibits 

down. 

  THE COURT:  I do appreciate it.  Thank you. 

  MR. SHAPIRO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

  THE COURT:  It has to be at least five days before the 

hearing.  Thank you so much. 

[Hearing concluded at 9:22 a.m.] 

* * * * * * * 
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the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my 

ability. 
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

 

[Case called at 1:13 p.m.] 

THE COURT:  Okay.  We're on the record In the Matter of the 

Petition of CLA Properties, page 1, the only page on our special setting 

for 1ish o'clock.  Case 795188.  Counsel, would you mind making your 

appearances, please? 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  Louis 

Garfinkel on behalf of Petitioner CLA Properties, LLC. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Good afternoon.  Jim Shapiro on behalf of 

Sean Bidsal, and Mr. Bidsal is also present here today.   

THE COURT:  Thank you so much.   

And so here we have a petition for the confirmation of the 

arbitration award and a countermotion to vacate the award.  And what 

the Court, usually in these finds -- thank you I've got all the sensitive 

briefing -- is that it's usually most useful really to let you all engage -- 

you all knew your case in arbitration.  I'm going to let you engage in oral 

argument.   

And so since you have a motion and a countermotion, 

generally the process would be that we agree to a time frame, and I give 

you X amount of time, two shots each to engage in your oral argument.  

And then if the Court has follow-up questions, the Court will either try 

and ask them -- try and refrain, and not during your argument.  If there's 

something I have to interrupt -- I'll try not to interrupt, but if I do then we 

don't take that time, and then if there's follow-up questions at the end.   
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And the if the Court can make a ruling from the bench, I will, 

and if I need some follow-up because there's a couple of things that I 

have when I was looking through this, then I might need to defer, and 

the ruling may not be from the bench today.  Does that work for the 

parties? 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Sure. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes, it does. 

THE COURT:  How much time do you think each side wants 

to do for their oral arguments?  I mean, the only reason why I'm trying to 

give you some general ballpark is because really I just thought in 

fairness to each side, so one side doesn't go on for an incredibly long 

time, and then the other side doesn't have an opportunity to present 

their -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, I plan on sort of addressing 

our petition or our motion and their countermotion all at once.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  That's fine.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  And my feeling is, is, Your Honor, that this 

matter has been fully briefed. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  We filed our petition.  The other side filed a 

40 page countermotion with 1,000 pages.  We responded to that in kind, 

and then they filed -- you know, we filed a 40 page brief with exhibits, 

and they filed a 30 page brief. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  My sense is, based on the substantial 
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record below and what's been filed, that I don't know how much more 

we can actually say.  So I hope not to spend a lot of time on this, Your 

Honor. 

THE COURT:  Sure.  Okay.  Then you know what I'm going to 

do is, if your ballpark -- you should get probably 20 to 30 minutes in the 

opening, and if you're going past that, then I'll see if you get an unfair 

amount and stop you and make sure the other side gets an opportunity. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  That's fine. 

THE COURT:  Does that work for either side? 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Yeah. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Sure. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  I hope not to take that long. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, if you don't that's always fine, but I 

want to make sure everyone has a full opportunity to be fully heard. 

So go ahead.  And, yes, the Court has read everything 

because, obviously, you all have done this for a bit of time, and 

everybody knows that standard in which the Court has to look at it.  It 

wouldn't go to -- with regards to an arbitration award, either to confirm it 

or to vacate it, and there's different standards, obviously for each.  Go 

ahead.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Sure.  Your Honor, Petitioner CLA and 

Respondent Bidsal, are members in a Nevada limited liability company, 

Green Valley Commerce.  And, basically, they are parties to an operating 

agreement that's dated June 15th, 2011.   

And Section 4, Article 5 of the operating agreement has what 
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we've referred to, sort of, as a buy/sell provision where one member 

may offer to purchase the remaining members interest in Green Valley.   

And in July of 2017, Mr. Bidsal, through his attorney, Mr. 

Shapiro, had basically made an offer to CLA Properties, to purchase CLA 

Properties membership interest in Green Valley for the fair market 

amount of -- fair market value of $5 million.  And CLA Properties, in turn, 

said, well, we're going to go ahead and buy you out for the $5 million 

fair market value figure.  And then within a couple of days, Mr. Shapiro, 

on behalf of Bidsal, sent a letter to CLA and said, we're going to invoke 

our right to an appraisal under the operating agreement.  And CLA's 

position is that they were not entitled to do that.   

Once we offered to purchase it at $5 million, that was it, and 

that should have been the end of it.  Mr. Bidsal did not have the right to 

invoke the right to an appraisal.  And as a result of these 

communications, there was a dispute and Article 3, Section 14.1 of the 

operating agreement has an arbitration provision and, basically, the 

arbitration was supposed to be administered by JAMS, and governed by 

the Federal Arbitration Act.  And, Your Honor, the other thing is, is that 

per the arbitration agreement, it said that any award rendered was final 

and not subject to review.   

And so on September 26th, 2017, Your Honor, CLA filed a 

demand for arbitration with JAMS, and it asserted one claim for 

declaratory relief under Nevada law and that claim basically sought a 

declaration as to the parties dispute over Section 4, Article 5 of the 

operating agreement, and that had to do with the buy/sell provision.  
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And Mr. Bidsal, in turn, asserted a counterclaim for declaratory relief 

seeking a similar type of ruling internally.  Basically, and interpretation of 

that provision. 

Pursuant to the arbitration agreement, the parties then 

selected the Honorable Stephen Haberfeld, who was a former United 

States Magistrate Judge, and he was appointed as the arbitrator. 

On April 4th, 2019, Arbitrator Haberfeld entered a final 

award.  The award found in favor of CLA, with respect to the contract 

interpretation of the buy/sell provision and further awarded CLA fees and 

costs in the amount of $298,256. 

As set forth in Mr. Bidsal's countermotion, this matter was 

originally filed by Bidsal in federal court.  CLA Properties moved to 

dismiss on the grounds of lack of subject matter jurisdiction.  Judge 

Gordon granted the motion, and so we're before you now, Your Honor. 

And as I mentioned, this matter has been heavily briefed.  

We filed our original petition.  They filed a countermotion to vacate, 40 

pages long, 1,000 pages of exhibits.  We filed an opposition and reply, 40 

pages, with 1,000 pages of exhibits including the full transcript of the 

arbitration hearing, and then they filed a reply of 30 pages. 

And, Your Honor, the first issue that really has to be decided 

by the Court is choice of law.  And Mr. Bidsal, in his countermotion, 

essentially applies both federal law, the Federal Arbitration Act, and also 

the Nevada Arbitration Act.  And, Your Honor, in our opposition, on 

pages -- I guess, it's page 10 -- I'm sorry, page 9, footnote 9, we cite the 

WPH Architecture v. Vegas VP, LP case.  And we believe that based on 
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that particular case, federal law is going to govern.  And, Your Honor, 

you can take a look at that case, and we believe it's pretty clear, 

regardless of what law you apply.  Whether you apply federal law, you 

apply state law, the result is going to be the same.  We believe that you 

should confirm the arbitrator's award. 

Your Honor, there's a couple of things I did want to just sort 

of go over with the standard of review, and I don't know if you want me 

to address it or not, but -- because you mentioned you thought that the 

standard was pretty clear.   

Under federal law, they cite 9 USC, Section 10, and basically, 

it says that an award may be vacated if it was procured by fraud, 

corruption, or undo means, or the arbitrator was biased or corrupt, guilty 

of misconduct in refusing to postpone a hearing, or refusing to hear 

evidence, pertinent material to a controversy, or any other misbehavior, 

or the arbitrator exceeded his powers, or so imperfectly executed them 

that a mutual final and definite award of the subject matter was not 

made. 

And basically, the federal courts have held that an arbitrator  

-- and just so you know, in this case they're arguing partiality and also 

that the arbitrator exceeded his powers.  And the federal courts seem to 

suggest that an arbitrator exceeds their powers not when they merely 

interpret or apply the governing law incorrectly but when the award is 

completely irrational or exhibits a manifest disregard of the law.   

And a manifest disregard of the law requires something 

beyond and different from a mere error in law or failure on the part of 
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arbitrators to understand and apply the law.  Typically, you've got to 

show that the arbitrator correctly stated the law but just disregarded it.  

And there must be some evidence in the record other than the fact that 

the arbitrator ruled against you.  They've got to show he intentionally 

disregarded it.  And the standard for finding an award completely 

irrational is extremely narrow and is satisfied only where the arbitrator's 

decision fails to draw its essence from the agreement. 

And, you know, the case law under the Federal Arbitration 

Act basically says that an award draws its essence from the agreement if 

the award is derived from the agreement due to -- in light of the 

agreement's language and context, as well as other indications of the 

parties intentions.  And the Court -- the reviewing court should not 

decide the right or wrongness of the contract interpretation, only 

whether the panel's decision draws its essence from the contract. 

THE COURT:  God bless you. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Now, Your Honor, Mr. Bidsal also cites 

Nevada law, and I was kind of surprised though that they did not cite sort 

of what I consider the seminal Nevada case, which is the Health Plan of 

Nevada v. Rainbow medical case.  And the Nevada Supreme Court has 

basically said that Nevada recognizes both statutory and common law 

grounds for examining an arbitrator's award.  And the party seeking to 

obtain the award vacated has the burden of proving by clear and 

convincing evidence the statutory or common law grounds. 

And NRS 38.241 sort of enumerates the grounds for vacating 

an award, and it's very similar to the Federal Arbitration Act, corruption, 
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fraud, partiality, misconduct, refusing to postpone, refuse to consider 

evidence, and then the arbitrator exceeded his powers.  And the 

language out of the Health Plan of Nevada case is kind of -- I think it's 

instructive.   

And basically, you see the language, it says, you know, when 

reviewing whether an arbitrator exceeded his powers, the Court 

presumes the arbitrator acted within the scope of his or her authority.  

Arbitrators can exceed their authority when they act outside the scope of 

the governing contract, but the Court would not vacate the award even if 

erroneous, if the arbitrator's interpretation is rationally grounded in the 

agreement or there is colorable justification for construing and applying 

the way the arbitrator did it. 

The central issue is not whether the arbitrator had the 

authority under the agreement to decide an issue, but whether it -- well, 

the question is whether they had the authority to decide the issue but not 

whether the issue was correctly decided.   

And the two common law grounds that have been discussed 

by the Nevada Supreme Court are arbitrary and capricious.  And 

basically, that's whether the arbitrator's findings are supported by 

substantial evidence, but that's not argued in this case.  And then a 

manifest disregard of law.  And basically, it's kind of similar to what -- 

you know, what the Federal Arbitration Act discusses, an arbitrator 

manifestly discouraged the law when he or she recognizes that the law 

requires a given result, but nevertheless refuses to apply the law 

correctly.  And basically, the Nevada Supreme Court says this relief is 
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extremely limited.   

So, Your Honor, sort of -- with that background, you know, I 

think that it's pretty obvious that review of an arbitrator's award is highly 

deferential and especially in a case where the parties agree that it would 

not be subject to review.  It was final and not subject to review.  And in 

this case, the parties selected the arbitrator, and the issue before the 

arbitrator was pretty clear, and the arbitrator decided the issue.  He did 

exactly what he was instructed to do by the parties.   

There's something that I did want to mention, Your Honor, 

that I think really needs some discussion.  And there are three places in 

the countermotion and then the reply where Bidsal argues that under the 

terms of the arbitration agreement, the arbitrator was supposed to issue 

his award within 30 days of the merits hearing but that in this case it took 

five months.  And they believe that delay, if you will, may be the basis 

for the arbitrator committing error in this case. 

And, Your Honor, there are really two things that I wanted to 

sort of point out.  In our brief, we talked about the fact that the parties 

actually came up with a briefing schedule.  And if you go ahead, and you 

take a look at CLA's appendix, volume 5, and it's Bates number 976 

through 982, you will see that on the second day of the arbitration, which 

was May 9th, 2018, that the parties actually waived the 30 day time 

period, and they went on the record.   

And Mr. Shapiro's co-counsel, Mr. Fooken [phonetic] was 

there, and he actually requested that the arbitrator make it clear and the 

parties go on the record that they were waiving the 30 days.  And then it 
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was also understood that because the arbitration was transcribed, there 

was a court reporter there that there was going to be post-arbitration 

briefing.  There would be a schedule, and then that there would be some 

delay in the issuance of a merit order -- a merits order, and then also 

because there was an attorney's fees provision that the parties would 

then be able to brief that and submit their claims too.  So, Your Honor, 

the first thing is that the parties actually waived the 30 day.   

The second point that I wanted to sort of raise, Your Honor, 

is that even if they didn't waive it, and they did, I find it hard to believe 

that the arbitrator because of the five month delay committed error.  And 

the reason why I say that, Your Honor, is that this particular dispute was 

heavily litigated, and the parties had the opportunity to file cross 

summary judgment motions, where they each filed a motion, and 

opposition, and a reply.  I believe this was in January of '18, and then in 

Los Angeles, I believe, in February there was a two hour oral argument 

on the motion for summary judgment, and that was denied.   

The arbitration actually took place on the 8th and 9th of May.  

It was transcribed.  There was a court reporter before the arbitration.  

The parties each had an opportunity to each file pre-arbitration briefs.  

So to the extent that this was a matter of contract interpretation, even 

before the arbitration and putting evidence on with live witnesses, the 

parties got to brief their interpretation of the contract and what they 

believed -- how they believed the arbitrator should rule. 

The arbitration went on for two days.  It was transcribed.  

After the hearing, it took a while for the transcript to be transcribed, for 
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the court reporter who transcribed it.  The parties then had the 

opportunity to file post-arbitration briefs where they were able to assert 

their arguments once again and cite to the transcript.  They then each 

had an opportunity to go ahead and file, if you will, an opposition to 

each post-arbitration brief.  So a substantial -- I mean, it was significantly 

briefed.  Everyone had an opportunity to present their theory of the case 

and their interpretation of the contract, many times.   

And, Your Honor, it was a two day arbitration where you had 

Mr. Bidsal testify, Mr. Golshani who is the managing member of CLA 

Properties and, also, David LeGrand.  And I raise David LeGrand, 

because David LeGrand is a lawyer who has been here many years, and 

he's the one who represented both parties in the drafting of the 

operating agreement.  And as set forth in the arbitrator's award, he 

basically said he was a non-biased party who drafted it.  He was a 

lawyer, and he gave great weight to Mr. LeGrand's interpretation of what 

Section 4 of Article 5 meant, and he believed that it was consistent with 

CLA Properties' interpretation of that provision. 

So, Your Honor, I guess my point is, is that Judge Haberfeld 

gave the parties every opportunity both orally and in writing to set forth 

their respective positions regarding interpretation of the buy/sell 

provision and Bidsal's claim that there was a significant amount of time 

between the arbitration and issuance of Merits Order 1, contributed to 

any errors alleged by Bidsal is simply without merit.   

Now, Your Honor, I kind of wanted to focus on the 

arbitrator's award, and I'll kind of just go through the evidence.  As I 
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mentioned, on April 4th, 2019, Judge Haberfeld entered the final award, 

finding in favor of CLA with respect to the buy/sell issue, and also 

awarded attorney's fees in the amount of $298,256.  The final award is 20 

pages.  It's extremely detailed.  It lays out the legal issue to be decided.  

It discusses, in detail, the evidence, both documents and testimony 

presented at the evidentiary hearing.  Analyzes, in detail, the evidence 

and set forth in detailed basis, after the conclusion, that Bidsal could be 

forced to sell his 50 percent interest to CLA based on the valuation of $5 

million contained in Bidsal's offer.   

The issue before the arbitrator was simply one of contractual 

interpretation.  The issue was whether CLA had the right to purchase 

Bidsal's 50 percent membership based on Bidsal's $5 million valuation, 

or whether Bidsal was entitled to an appraisal to establish the fair market 

value. 

And, Your Honor, one of the provisions in Section 4, that was 

prominently discussed in Judge Haberfeld's award, and I wouldn't say 

it's -- in part, it was the basis for it, but it really wasn't addressed is 

Section 4 of the operating agreement, and it's the last paragraph in 

Section 4.2, and it states the specific intent of the parties, which Judge 

Haberfeld found extremely persuasive.  And it says the specific intent of 

this provision is that once the offering member presented his or its offer 

to the remaining members, then the remaining member shall either buy 

or sell at the same offered price and, parenthetically, or if FMV -- if an 

appraisal is invoked, close paren, and in accordance with the procedure 

set in Section 4.   
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And it says, in the case that the remaining member decides 

to purchase, then the offering member shall be obligated to sell his or 

her member interest to the remaining member.  And in this particular 

case, it was Mr. Bidsal who made the offer to purchase CLA's 

membership interest and CLA, in turn, said, we're going to purchase 

your interest for your valuation of $5 million and that's consistent with 

the specific intent and that's what Judge Haberfeld found.   

And in paragraph 13 of his award, he stated that, quote, 

"specific intent language is expressed specific and could not be more 

clear as to these parties' objectively manifested specific intent to be so 

bound."  And based on this language, in part, and the rest of the 

testimony concluded that Section 4, did not require an appraisal to 

determine the price to be paid by the remaining member.   

And it said, Judge Haberfeld's conclusion regarding the 

specific language supported by the evidence submitted at the hearing, 

Your Honor, including Mr. Golshani's testimony regarding the operation 

agreement, and also David LeGrand's testimony.  And he noted that in a 

dispute between litigating partners, the testimony of third-party 

witnesses becomes important.  And he stated, this is specifically so 

when the third-part witness is unbiased, and the drafting lawyer was 

jointly representing the parties.  And they're talking about -- he's talking 

about David LeGrand. 

And, Your Honor, in paragraphs 11, 12, 13, and 14 of the final 

award Judge Haberfeld discusses, in detail, Mr. LeGrand's testimony 

regarding the specific language -- specific intent language, and clearly it 
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supports Judge Haberfeld's conclusion.   

And one of the things that Judge Haberfeld did in the award, 

Your Honor, is he discussed Mr. Bidsal's testimony in paragraphs 15, 16, 

17, 18, 19, and 20 of the award.  And basically, I wanted to summarize his 

conclusions with respect to Mr. Bidsal's testimony.   

He talked about the term that it was outcome determinative.  

He said that Bidsal attempted to find a contractual out to regain his lost 

leverage.  He ignored, disregarded, and at the hearing resisted 

application of the specific intent language.  He found and apparently 

settled on what Judge Haberfeld thought was maybe an ambiguity in the 

operating agreement to argue that fair market value could only mean a 

third-party appraiser.  And one of the things that he argued was that -- 

Bidsal argued that because Golshani was the drafter of that provision it 

had to be construed against Golshani.   

And, Your Honor, Judge Haberfeld did not buy that 

argument.  And what he said was, in a couple of different places, that he 

believed that Mr. Bidsal controlled the final -- he had the final control 

over the drafting of the document.  And he said that even if Golshani was 

the drafter, it was not -- it wouldn't affect the outcome of his case.  That 

regardless of, you know, any ambiguity, and, you know, construing a 

document -- you know, construing language against the drafter, the 

arbitrator said it doesn't matter, I would still find against Bidsal in this 

case. 

So, at the end of the day, while Bidsal's countermotion 

spends pages arguing that, and that's really sort of the basis for turning  
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-- over turning this award, the arbitrator said even if that was the case, I 

would still rule against them based on all of the other evidence.   

And one of the things that Haberfeld concluded was that 

Bidsal's position was legally flawed and did not work in all buy/sell 

contingencies as contemplated by Section 4.2.  He said that, you know, 

he also looked at the specific intent language, and he said that CLA's 

interpretation of Section 4.2 was logical, made sense, and worked in all 

of the scenarios contemplated by Section 4.2, and he went to the extent 

of actually giving examples of where the argument that FMV always 

included an appraisal simply did not make sense.  And, Your Honor, 

based on that, he ruled that Bidsal's interpretation simply didn't make 

any sense here. 

And, Your Honor, I thought that our brief really did an 

excellent job of sort of addressing all of their factual issues, you know, in 

terms of -- and I'll just sort of go through them.  He said that Bidsal 

controlled the final drafting.  The parties wanted a forced buy/sell.  Bidsal 

argued that the Dutch auction concept was not introduced until late in 

the game.  The evidence at the arbitration was to the contrary.  It actually 

started quite early in the process with David LeGrand. 

David LeGrand testified both Mr. Bidsal and Mr. Golshani 

wanted the forced buy/sell.  In other words, this was something that they 

both wanted.  Mr. LeGrand is the one who brought up the fact that 

capital accounts were difference and, as a result, you had to sort of come 

up with some different language, which both Mr. Golshani and Mr. 

Bidsal did in fact work on together, and that was part of the language 
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that actually showed up in Section 4.2, although it was in fact, I guess, 

massaged by both Mr. Bidsal and Mr. LeGrand. 

One of the arguments is that we argued that Bidsal's offer 

confirms that the offered price is the fair market value.  One of the things 

he said, that Bidsal argued that there could not be a fair market value 

without an appraisal, which simply did not make sense.  One of the 

things is, is that if that was the case, then the formula would not work. 

And because, for example, what would happen if Mister -- Bidsal's 

argument was FMV always said you need an appraisal.   

And in this particular case, what would have happened if CLA 

simply did nothing under the provision within 30 days, it would be 

deemed accepted.  Well, what do you put in there?  It doesn't work.  You 

would have no fair market value if it always meant there was an 

appraisal.  That was one of the arguments.  Bidsal argued that Mr. 

Golshani tried to take care of -- take advantage of Bidsal by secretly 

obtaining an appraisal.  The evidence is contrary to that.  Mr. Golshani 

testified he told Bidsal in advance he was going to obtain an appraisal, 

and he gave him the range.   

One of the other things that came up and this, we believe, 

may in fact may have been part of why Judge Haberfeld reached some 

of the conclusions is that several months before Mr. Bidsal made the 

offer to purchase CLA's membership interest, is that he had actually 

talked to Mr. Golshani about if he was interested in additional 

investments, and Golshani told him he was either not liquid or had other 

projects he was considering. 
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And so Judge Haberfeld concluded that miscalculating 

intentions, thinking and/or finding financial resources available to the 

other party are not a cognizable basis for rewriting contractual 

procedures.  And basically, I think Judge Haberfeld concluded, based on 

that testimony, that Mr. Bidsal sort of had -- he thought that Mr. Golshani 

and CLA couldn't afford to do it, and he low balled them, and that's what 

happened here.  And then to get out of it, they invoked a provision where 

they said, oh, we're entitled to an appraisal. 

You know, Your Honor, we believe that Judge Haberfeld's 

findings are supported, not contradicted by the evidence.  One of the 

other things that they argue is that in erring, I should say, Your Honor, 

Judge Haberfeld applied a rough justice concept here as the parties' 

intent.  And, Your Honor, that's not the case.  What he concluded was 

that the Dutch auction provision, the end result of that would sort of be a 

rough justice.  He didn't apply rough justice.  That was sort of the end 

result of what that provision would ultimately leave the parties at.  So as 

a characterization of the process invoked by the parties. 

Just a couple of other things.  They argue that -- Mr. Bidsal 

complained that the award required him to transfer his interest free and 

clear of liens and encumbrances.  That's what makes sense, Your Honor, 

because if you went ahead, and you applied the formula, which the 

parties agree on, it would make no sense that you could go ahead and 

sell your interest and encumbrance.  So the $5 million offer for fair 

market value means absolutely nothing.  It would be worthless. 

The other thing they talked about, transferring title within ten 
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days.  Your Honor, the award came down in April of 2018 [sic].  It's 

probably been six months now.  Under the circumstances all we're 

talking about is simply signing your name.  Ten days is reasonable, and 

we think it's within his power.  Some date had to be set. 

And, Your Honor, the last thing is that -- and they argued that 

somehow Judge Haberfeld was guilty of partiality or misbehavior.  And 

they really don't give you any kind of concrete examples, other than the 

fact that Judge Haberfeld ruled against Mr. Bidsal, and that's it.  There's 

got to be more than that.  There's no fraud here, or corruption, or 

anything like that.   

So, Your Honor, based on that we would request that our 

motion to confirm the arbitrator's award and entry of judgment be 

granted in its entirety as set forth in our prayer for relief, and that the 

countermotion to vacate the award be denied.   

THE COURT:  I do appreciate it.  Thank you so very much.  

Counsel. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Thank you, Your Honor.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Hopefully, Your Honor, I didn't go over that 

much.   

THE COURT:  No, we're fine.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  I just want to make sure everyone has full 

opportunity to be heard.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Thank you, Your Honor, for this opportunity 

to speak and to give our side of the tale.  I know you've read everything.  
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You understand the main arguments, so I'm not going to bore you with a 

lot of those details.  I will touch on some things that we feel are 

important.  But before I start, does Your Honor have any questions?  I'm 

used to arguing in front of the Supreme Court where I never get through 

my arguments, and I prefer it that way.  I want to know what the Justices 

are thinking, so I can address their concerns.  So if you have any, I would 

be happy to answer them, otherwise I'll go into what I've prepared.   

THE COURT:  Feel free to go into what you prepared.  I'm 

going to wait until the end and then ask a couple question. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Thank you so much. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Fair enough, Your Honor.   

Your Honor, in our opposition and countermotion we set 

forth both the federal and state standard. And, quite frankly, they are 

pretty much equal.  In fact, we cited to both of them as we set forth a lot 

of these standards.  And so I don't know that it really matters whether 

you follow state law or federal law because from everything I saw, at 

least as it applies to this case, they are pretty much identical. 

When an arbitrator exceeds his powers -- and that has a lot 

of connotations there that I'm going to talk about in a minute -- or where 

there's evidence of partiality, or where the arbitrator engages in 

misbehavior by which the rights of any party has been prejudiced, the 

arbitration award should be set aside.  And I understand.  Look, this -- 

there is a policy to enforce arbitration awards. I  understand that.  We 

have a burden.  But based upon what we have presented, we have met 

002566

002566

00
25

66
002566



 

- 21 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

that burden.  And I think it's clear that this arbitration award needs to be 

vacated.   

The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals has held that where an 

arbitrator exceeds their powers or that an arbitrator exceeds their 

powers when the arbitration award is completely irrational or exhibits a 

manifest disregard for the law.  The United States Supreme Court has 

held that when an arbitrator strays from the interpretation and 

application of the agreement and effects -- effectively dispenses his own 

brand of industrial justice, his or her decision may be unenforceable.   

That is what happened in this case.  The arbitrator manifestly 

disregarded the law, manifestly disregarded the evidence, dispensed his 

own brand of justice, and it's very clear that this happened.  And I'm 

going to walk you through a couple of the low hanging fruit that CLA 

Properties wants to ignore, but it's vital issues that the judge just flat out 

made up his own facts on. 

The first one I'm going to start with is who drafted Section 4 

of the operating agreement.  CLA Properties wants to rely on the 

arbitrator's award for this.  They don't want to cite to the evidence.  The 

reason that they don't want to cite to the evidence is because the 

evidence doesn't support it.  When you look at the evidence, Exhibit N --

and, Your Honor, I'm going to be looking at Exhibits N through T, I 

believe. 

This is -- so to give you some background while you're 

turning there, the parties needed an operating agreement.  They didn't 

have a form that they were comfortable with, and so one of the 
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professionals involved, and I apologize I don't remember who it was, but 

gave Shawn the name of an attorney, David LeGrand.  So Shawn went to 

David LeGrand and said, hey, we need an operating agreement.  And 

David LeGrand did not represent Shawn, and he didn't represent Ben.  

He was going to represent kind of CLA Properties and draft this 

operating agreement.   

So he starts drafting an operating agreement.  And this was  

-- he gets the operating agreement drafted, and there was multiple drafts 

of this operating agreement.  And you see different iterations of this 

buy/sell language.  David LeGrand initially is asked, hey -- well, Ben and 

Shawn said we need some buy/sell language.  So he proposes some 

buy/sell language, and Ben doesn't like it.  So David LeGrand proposes 

different buy/sell language.  Ben doesn't like that either.  David LeGrand 

comes up with what he calls a Dutch auction, and Ben doesn't like that.   

Now David LeGrand's testimony was that was his idea and, 

in fact, at the arbitration what he testified is he goes, you know, I now 

realize that the way I was using Dutch auction is not the way it's 

normally used is common vernacular.  He goes, I was using it with 

different concept.  But it really doesn't matter how he was using the 

phrase Dutch auction.  What's important is that ultimately he sends an 

email where he says, and this is Exhibit L -- and I apologize I said N.  I'm 

jumping back a couple. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  In Exhibit L, this is an email from David 

LeGrand.  Shawn and Ben, I got Ben's voicemail Saturday regarding 
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buy/sell, and I talked with Shawn about the issue, that because your 

capital contributions are so different, you should consider a formula or 

other approach to valuing you interest.  A simple Dutch auction, where 

either of you can make an offer to the other, and the other can elect to 

buy or sell at the offered price does not appear to make sense to me.   

That's David LeGrand's email, after he introduced the Dutch 

auction.  And in fact his testimony confirms that he threw that entire 

concept out.  That as of this date, September 19th, 2011, no longer was 

part of the operating agreement.  The fact that arbitrator relied on this 

Dutch auction and gave it so much weight, notwithstanding David 

LeGrand's own testimony and the clear and unambiguous evidence that 

the concept had been discarded, demonstrates the manifest disregard 

for the evidence.   

Now what happened?  Ben was so frustrated with David 

LeGrand's efforts to come up with the buy/sell language, that he took a 

stab at it on his own.  And this is where we turn to Exhibit N as in Nancy.  

Now David LeGrand abandoned the Dutch auction on September 11th. 

On September 22nd, Ben Golshani sends an email to Shawn 

Bidsal.  Attached to that email is a file that's called buy/sell Ben version.  

This is the document that Ben drafted.  He named it -- he put his own in 

name in it, and he emailed it to Shawn.  Did you find Exhibit N, Your 

Honor?   

THE COURT:  I'm -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  You're still digging through the -- 

THE COURT:  -- I'm at P, so I'll just scoot back to -- give me a 
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Bate stamp number. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  416.  And I apologize, Your Honor, I should 

have done that first, and I will do that from now on. 

THE COURT:  No worries.  There it is.  Okay.  Thank you. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay.  He says, Shawn, enclosed please find 

a rough draft of what I came up with.  I tried to make it reciprocal.  See if 

you like it.  Comments are appreciated.  Ben.  And then on Appendix 417, 

is two pages of the language that Ben himself admitted he came up with.   

Now let's continue the chronology.  That's in Exhibit N.  O is 

the final version, and we'll come back to that if we need to.  I don't know 

that we need to.  Go to P, which is 449.  So on September 22nd, Ben 

sends his version.  The document has his name in it, and in his email he 

says this is what I came up with.   

October 26th, a little more than a month later.  Again the 

email from Ben to Shawn.  Attachment, buysellbenversion2.docx.  

Shawn, here is the agreement we discussed.  Please take a look to see if 

you like it.  And attached is a document called rough draft 2.  There was 

no evidence that Shawn -- thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  No, only because my court recorder, 

remember, she has to listen to all of this.  So feel free.  I get it that you 

both are emphatic, but the louder the voices -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  My mom always told me, we're at the dinner 

table you don't have to shout. 

THE COURT:  No, it's just my court recorder has to listen to it. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Thank you. 
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THE COURT:  I understand you both are enthusiastic on 

behalf of your respective clients, but -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  -- keep the volume down just a little bit and be 

a little nicer -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Just -- 

THE COURT:  -- to my court recorder who is listening. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- give me that sign again if I -- 

THE COURT:  No worries. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- if I go back -- 

THE COURT:  I appreciate you're both enthusiastically 

representing your clients.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Please continue. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  So in Exhibit P, here Ben sends his revised 

version, and it's called rough draft 2.  And again there was no evidence 

that Shawn had anything to do with any of the revisions.  Well, no, that's 

not true.  Ben and Shawn did have a discussion about possible changes.  

And in fact one of the changes is going to become very important in -- at 

a later point.   

All right.  Now what happened?  Ben and Shawn discussed 

rough draft version 2.  Ben then faxes it to David LeGrand.  If you turn to 

Exhibit R, which is 456.  This is November 10th, 2011.  This is an email 

from David LeGrand to Shawn Bidsal.  Shawn, I received a fax from Ben 

and am rewriting it to be more detailed and complete.  I will send it out 
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to both of you shortly.  So now here David LeGrand -- and he 

acknowledges this in his testimony.  He acknowledges that he got a fax 

from Ben, he made some changes, and that's what ultimately was 

incorporated into the operating agreement. 

Now I've got to switch binders.  If you got to Exhibit S, this is 

a version -- this came from actually David LeGrand.  This is Appendix 

457.  My apologies, Your Honor.  And it actually has two Bate stamps on 

it.  One is appendix, which my office put on it.  The other one is DL00359.  

The DL stands for David LeGrand.  This came from his file.   

THE COURT:  Excuse me. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  And this is draft 2, which is his revisions to 

the fax that was received from Ben Golshani.   

And then if you turn to Exhibit T, Appendix 460, this is a 

redline that shows the changes that David LeGrand made to Section 4. 

And as you can see, the changes were nominal.  He capitalized the word 

member.  He changed it from share to membership interest.  He changed 

it from abbreviation to definitions.  There is no substantive change that 

David LeGrand made before he put it into the operating agreement. 

That's what the evidence showed.  There is no evidence that 

CLA Properties can point to that contradicts what I just described to Your 

Honor.  And yet the arbitrator found that Shawn was the drafter and/or 

David LeGrand was the drafter.   

Mr. Garfinkel was up here telling Your Honor how much the 

arbitrator relied upon David LeGrand's testimony as far as the 

interpretation of Section 4, and yet David LeGrand didn't even draft 
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Section 4.  He tried, multiple times, and each of those were rejected, 

including David LeGrand's Dutch auction concept, which again the 

arbitrator incorporated into his final award.  The arbitrator simply came 

up with whatever narrative he wanted to come up with.  He disregarded 

the undisputed evidence.   

If that's not enough, there was a subsequent email, and I 

apologize, Your Honor, I don't have the citation.  I can try and find.  But 

there was a subsequent email where David LeGrand, a few years later, 

was preparing an operating agreement for another entity that Shawn 

and Ben were both involved in.  And he sent an email -- and this is cited 

in my brief, and so I know it's in the pleadings.   

David LeGrand sends an email out and goes, I'm going to 

use the -- I think he said something to the effect of the Green Valley 

operating agreement, which contains Ben's language in it.  David 

LeGrand acknowledged in that email, in his testimony, and everywhere 

else, number one, that he was not the drafter of Section 4; number two, 

that the Dutch auction concept was not part of what ultimately ended up 

in the agreement.   

The fact that the arbitrator nonetheless found that the 

operating agreement, or Section 4 of the operating agreement was 

drafted by Shawn Bidsal, demonstrates that he had -- it was completely 

irrational, he was dispensing his own brand of justice, he had a manifest 

disregard both for the law and the evidence.  And on that ground 

enough, the arbitration award in its entirety should be just -- should be 

voided.   
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I've already kind of touched on it, but the second point, 

which is distinct from who drafted Section 4 of the operating agreement, 

is the fact that there was a Dutch auction, or a forced buy/sell was part of 

the concept, I don't dispute that David LeGrand initially tried to put in 

some forced buy/sell language.  He certainly did.  And that language was 

specifically rejected by the parties.  They didn't want it.  And David 

LeGrand himself admitted he abandoned it.  The fact that the arbitrator 

found that the Dutch auction or forced buy/sell was part of the concept, 

shows a manifest disregard for the evidence.  It shows that he's just 

making this up.  He's creating whatever it is he needs to create, so he 

can rule the way he has already predetermined to rule.   

And then the same goes with this rough justice that the 

arbitrator was stuck on.  If you look -- and I don't know how you cite to a 

negative, right.  I can cite to the hearing transcript though I don't expect 

you to read it all.  The phrase rough justice does not show up anywhere 

int hearing transcript.  It was not used by any of the witnesses.  It's not 

contained in any of LeGrand's email.  It's not contained in any of Shawn 

Bidsal or Ben Golshani's emails.   

That is the concept that the arbitrator -- he actually brought it 

up early on when there was the dispositive motion hearing, and he 

started talking about this rough draft, and he seemed stuck on it, and he 

wasn't going to let it go.  And it ultimately ended up in his final 

arbitration award.  The fact that that even showed up in his arbitration 

award demonstrates a manifest disregard for the law.  It demonstrates 

that he's not making a ruling based upon the agreement. 
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Now Mr. Garfinkel pointed out that the arbitrator found that 

Section 4 is ambiguous.  And quite frankly I think he's right.  I think there 

is some ambiguity in there.  But that just underscores how important it 

was that he find the right party -- make a factual finding as to who 

drafted it because as Your Honor knows, under applicable law, 

ambiguous language is construed against the drafter.  And yet in this 

case, the arbitrator found that Shawn Bidsal was the drafter of Section 4, 

notwithstanding the evidence, and then construed any ambiguity against 

Mr. Bidsal.  That's a manifest disregard of the law as well as the 

evidence. 

The fact that the Court gave great weight -- and I'm quoting 

Mr. Garfinkel's words -- the fact that the court gave great weight to 

LeGrand's interpretation of Section 4, demonstrates a manifest disregard 

for the evidence, because LeGrand himself testified, and the evidence is 

clear, he didn't draft the language.  Giving great weight to LeGrand was 

inappropriate, because he didn't even come up with the language and 

the amount of changes that he made to it were nominal at best.  

We presented -- and, Your Honor, all of these exhibits were 

presented to the arbitrator.  The redline showing the changes that David 

LeGrand made, which I believe is Exhibit T, that was presented to the 

arbitrator.  He had that in front of him.  He could have looked at it and 

seen that -- that was probably bad English.  He could have looked at it 

and saw that David LeGrand made nominal changes, and yet he relied 

upon David LeGrand's testimony about what David LeGrand attempted 

to do and was rejected by the parties. 
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The arbitrator made a finding that the $5 million offer that 

was contained in my initial offer letter, constituted fair market value.  The 

problem is when you look at Section 4, fair market value is specifically 

defined.  And for this you can turn to Exhibit O, which is Bate stamp 420.  

This is the signed operating agreement.  And actually, let me give you a 

better pinpoint citation.  Okay.  It's actually 429.  On Appendix 429.  This 

is again the signed operating agreement.  This is ultimately what Ben 

and Shawn signed.  And this is the section that is at issue.   

And if you look at Section 4.1, it says definitions.  And the 

last definition there is it says, FMV means fair market value obtained as 

specified in Section 4.2.  So you go to 4.2, and that's on the next page, 

Appendix 430, the first full paragraph.  The last sentence says, the 

medium of these two appraisals constitutes the fair market value of the 

property, which is called FMV.   

So fair market value, by the terms of the operating 

agreement, Section 4.1, says it means the fair market value obtained as 

specified in 4.2.  And 4.2 says, the medium of the two appraisals 

constitutes the fair market value of the property, which is called FMV.  

That means FMV can only be the product of two appraisals, and yet the 

arbitrator found that Shawn Bidsal's best estimate of what was 

contained -- or, I mean, best estimate of the fair market value of the 

property that he put in his offer constituted the fair market value.  That's 

a manifest disregard of the language itself. 

There's another important part that the arbitrator 

disregarded and for this we're going to have to go back to -- 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  I didn't want to stop you, but now I am 

going to have to stop you -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  -- because I understand what you're saying 

about the FMV -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  -- definition -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  -- set forth in Exhibit O, like Oscar or operating 

agreement, right. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  But the FMV referenced in the arbitrator's 

decision -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  Are you referencing what he referenced on 

page 9 of his decision, or are you referencing a different portion of his 

decision where he talks about FMV?   

MR. SHAPIRO:  I apologize, Your Honor.  And I don't know 

exactly where it is, but basically he determined that the $5 million that 

was contained in -- 

THE COURT:  So I thought you were referencing paragraph 

16, which is pages 8 and 9 of the arbitrator's decision, but I just wasn't -- 

I'm just trying to parallel what -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  -- you're referencing in your argument from the 
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arbitrator's decision.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Bear with me, Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  No worries. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- I will find the answer.  I am -- yes, that is.  

It's paragraph 16 of the arbitrator's decision and -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  But -- and I'm sorry, so this is my 

question -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- and you can answer at the end or I can wait.  

Is there I saw that he had a citation actually to the hearing transcript 

rather than the operating agreement itself.  So when one goes and looks 

at the hearing transcript, isn't that based on testimony of the hearing 

transcript -- of what the interpretation of FMV meant from the hearing 

transcript, not from the language of the operating agreement, or was it 

your understanding it was something different?  I'm just trying to get the 

context to your argument. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Well, absolutely, Your Honor.  Your Honor, I 

apologize.  As I stand here today, I do not know what the hearing 

transcript he referenced to is, but you raise a good point, and I want to 

address that point. 

THE COURT:  No worries.  And I didn't want to interrupt you.  

It was only because I was seeing it as he was representing from the 

hearing transcript as defined -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  -- whereas I heard your argument as being 
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from the operating agreement.  I wanted to make sure I was 

understanding your argument correctly.  But I hear -- if I'm 

understanding your argument correctly, but your point is still FMV 

should be defined from the operating agreement. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  It is.  And therein is the problem.  The 

arbitrator is required to enforce the agreement.  The arbitrator can't 

enforce an agreement that's contrary to the written document.  It doesn't 

matter what the testimony said.  If the written document defines FMV as 

the sum of two appraisals, and the arbitrator was relying on upon 

testimony, then that in and of itself is a problem for the arbitrator unless, 

of course, he explains some rational explanation as to why testimony 

would trump a written contract.   

As Your Honor is well aware, under contract law when the 

contract is unambiguous you enforce the contract law, which is even 

more problematic because if the arbitrator found that testimony was 

relevant to interpret Section 4, then he needed to interpret it against the 

drafter.   

THE COURT:  Right.  But Mr. Lewin [phonetic] is your co-

counsel, correct? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  No. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, Mr. Lewin is my co-counsel. 

THE COURT:  Your co-counsel. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  That's my point of clarification.  Okay.  

No worries. 
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MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay.  Does that answer your question? 

THE COURT:  That answers my question. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay.  I think I've covered a lot of this.  Bear 

with me, Your Honor, I'll try and skip to the end.  I think I'm probably out 

of time anyway, almost.   

Yeah, I mean, if an award is determined to be arbitrary, 

capricious, or unsupported by the agreement, it may not be enforced.  

That's citing Wichinsky v. Mosa.  The evidence is clear that the arbitrator 

ignored the plain language, ignored the evidence, and just came up with 

his own brand of justice and whatever it was he had predetermined to 

do, which is simply not allowed.  I get it that even if Your Honor would 

not have enforced or not ruled the same way that the arbitrator ruled, 

that's not enough for us to prevail, and I understand that.   

But the fact that the arbitrator simply ignored the evidence is 

enough to set aside the arbitrator's award.  For instance, instead of 

relying upon the testimony, the arbitrator -- I'm going to put myself out 

to dry here, I've got a quote, and I put a citation.  But in his order, he 

relies upon what is common among partners in business entities like 

partnerships, joint venture, LLCs, and close corporations.   

Well, what is common shouldn't supplant what the language 

of the agreement it, nor should it supplant what the evidence shows.  

And yet the arbitrator ignored the evidence and instead of relying upon 

the evidence, instead of relying upon what the agreement said, decided 

to rely upon what is common among partners.  That's a failure to draw 

the essence from the agreement and, therefore, constitutes a completely 
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irrational decision, and it should be vacated. 

And I'll wrap it up, because I think I've about used my 30 

minutes.  Let's see here. 

We do think he's exceeded the authority, Your Honor.  When 

you look at the relief sought, it didn't allow the arbitrator to order that 

the membership interest be conveyed free and clear of all liens or 

encumbrances, nor did it allow him to give a deadline for when that is to 

occur.  I'll point the Court to Kootee v Berringer [phonetic], which is a 

Ninth Circuit Court case, where the Court held that an arbitration award 

that is legally irreconcilable with the undisputed facts can be set aside 

and vacated.  And I think that's what we have here.   

We do believe that there's sufficient evidence to show that 

the arbitrator is guilty of partiality.  The fact that he found that Shawn  

was the drafter just demonstrates that he had it in his head that he 

wanted to rule against Shawn.  And we cited a whole laundry list of 

specific rulings in his ultimate award where he has it out for Shawn. 

And this is what I missed.  When you look at Ben Golshani's 

first rough draft of his language it said the initiating offer -- in the event 

that a member is willing to sell his or its membership interest in the 

company to the other member, then the procedures and terms of Section 

4, shall apply.  That was changed to, in the event a member is willing to 

purchase -- and I'm looking at Exhibit N, and I'm comparing that to 

Exhibit P.  If you look at the first section of Exhibit N -- 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- and the change to Exhibit P, there was a 
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specific change from sell to purchase.  The Court, if they find an 

ambiguity can look at the drafts and has to give credence to the fact that 

the parties agreed that instead of the language reading, in the event that 

member is willing to sell his or her interest, it's in the event that the 

member is willing to purchase the remaining member's interest.  That's 

a key change because that demonstrates that the intent of the parties 

was that an offer was not an offer to sell.  It was only an offer to 

purchase.  If the parties wanted it to be an offer to buy or sell, they could 

have said it, but they didn't.  The initial language said willing to sell.  The 

language that ended up in the operating agreement was willing to 

purchase.  And that's a distinction that has to be considered.  It was 

completely ignored by the arbitrator.   

And again, on that basis, the award should be vacated.  

Obviously, if the award is vacated the award of attorney's fees should be 

vacated.  And unless Your Honor has more arguments -- let's see -- I 

mean, more questions on the arguments. 

THE COURT:  No.  No I don't have any other questions.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  I've addressed the specific issues that give 

rise and give the basis for vacating the award, and we would request that 

it be vacated.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  The Court does have a few 

questions.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  But here's my questions.  I had offered initially 

that you could each have two rounds if you wanted it, and then you kind 
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of said you were combining it.  So do each want still two rounds or not?   

MR. GARFINKEL:  I just have a couple of comments.  I'm not 

going -- we briefed this thing -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Then you can have a couple comments, 

and you can have a couple comments in response, then the Court will 

save it questions.  Go ahead.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  That works. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  You may answer my questions in your 

comments.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  Go ahead. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  You know, opposing counsel sort of treats 

this as here are facts, you need to buy them, and if you buy them, then 

we're done.  But opposing counsel has basically ignored all of the 

evidence that was introduced both in documents and testimony at the 

arbitration hearing, and it was as a result of all of that, that the arbitrator 

concluded in CLA's favor. 

And, Your Honor, Mr. Shapiro sort of gave you their best 

scenario in their perfect world, but I urge you to go ahead and take a look 

at our opposition to the counter motion to vacate and take a look at 

pages 13 through 23 of our brief. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Give me one -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  -- let me get to that one.  Okay.  Go ahead, 
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counsel. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  And, Your Honor, if you go ahead, and you 

take a look at those pages you will see that in excruciating detail we lay 

out the, if you will, the beginning to the end of the drafting of the 

operating agreement and the relevant provision. 

We won, okay.  And -- 

THE COURT:  Sure.  For clarity just -- so pointing to the page 

numbers. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Oh, I'm sorry, page 13 through 23. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  There we go. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Yeah.  And if you go ahead, and you take a 

look at that, Your Honor, you know, you will see that we address, in 

detail, what we believe the evidence showed.  And obviously, as the 

prevailing party that we should be given great weight to that because 

that's the -- those are the facts and the evidence that the arbitrator 

believed as opposed to what he didn't believe in their argument. 

And the arbitrator's brief lays that all out, but I suggest you 

take a look at pages 13 through 23, and it basically goes through, in 

detail, what happened.  And it's, you know, contrary to what Mr. Shapiro 

represents, and there's a different story here.  And, please, if you have 

any questions, Your Honor, take a look at it because that's what the 

arbitrator agreed to.   

One of the things that Mr. Shapiro talked about in great detail 

was the whole issue about ambiguities of the contract, and it should be 

construed against the drafter.  And, Your Honor, one of the things that 
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we pointed out in our brief was basically -- there was a citation to a 

recent United States Supreme Court case.  Bear with me one second, 

Your Honor.  And it's called Lamps Plus v. Varela, and I will get you -- 

what page is that?  It's on page 33 of our brief, Your Honor.   

And there's the -- you know, the old maxim, you know, an 

ambiguity in the contract should be construed against the drafter.  And I 

guess the rule is known as contra proferentem.  But what the Supreme 

Court basically said was, was that the rule only applies as a last -- as a 

last resort when the meaning of a provision remains ambiguous after 

exhausting the ordinary methods of interpretation, and it's only triggered 

when the Court cannot discern the intent of the parties. 

And, Your Honor, if you go through the arbitrator's award 

you will see that clearly the arbitrator discerned the intent of the parties, 

and he references Nevada law with contract interpretation.  The 

important thing is to discern the intent of the parties.  He also goes 

through a detailed analysis of what the intent was based on the 

testimony.  And so, Your Honor, we believe that, you know, that doesn't 

make sense. 

They also talked about the definition of FMV, and the 

arbitration award addresses that in great detail, FMV, and what it means.  

And the argument that they made is FMV always means you need an 

appraisal.  Well, the arbitrator rejected that argument.  He listened to all 

the testimony, he looked at the documents, and he rejected their 

argument.  It was in front of him, and he just decided against them.  

They lost.  He interpreted the agreement, and that's his interpretation.   
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Your Honor, I think that is -- that's about it for me.  So I kept it 

short.  Any questions for me, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  I'm going to have questions for both of you. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  One of them is a chronology question.  So it's 

probably best left for you, Mr. Garfinkel.  Okay.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Sure.   

THE COURT:  The statement by counsel for Mr. Bidsal -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  I'm sorry, what? 

THE COURT:  I'm sorry, if I'm mispronouncing. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Bidsal.   

THE COURT:  Bidsal.  I'm sorry, if I mispronounce your folks' 

names.  Was that after September 18th or 19th, 2011, there was nothing 

else about a Dutch auction, et cetera, okay.  The email that you 

referenced from Mr. LeGrand is dated September 16, 2011.   

And I understand you each have a different argument.  One 

argument is, on behalf of CLA, is that nobody on behalf of Bidsal ever 

disagreed with LeGrand's interpretation so, therefore, why would you 

have to say anything else -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  -- because they never disagreed with it?  

And I'm hearing from Bidsal's counsel, well, there's changes 

made, and he pointed me to N and P, the 7.2s, which has -- as he stated 

were drafted by CLA and Mr. Golshani. 

So is there anything other than the LeGrand email and the 
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7.2s that the arbitrator would have had -- including, I'm sorry, the 

testimony of each of the three witnesses, which I'm about to ask a 

question on that in just a second, but what did the arbitrator have the 

benefit of other than the three witness' testimony and those documents 

to try and reconcile those differing viewpoints?   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, I think if you go to the 

arbitrator's award, and you look at 12, he talks about -- paragraph 12, he 

talks about -- 

THE COURT:  Paragraph 12, is that on page 9?  Maybe I'm 

referencing -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Page 7. 

THE COURT:  -- yeah, the last sentence that it doesn't matter 

who the drafter, that part? 

MR. GARFINKEL:  No.  I mean, obviously, that was part of it, 

but what -- 

THE COURT:  Oh, I'm sorry, you said paragraph 12.  I was 

referencing -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  It's paragraph 12. 

THE COURT:  -- paragraph 17.   I'm sorry. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  What's pretty obvious, Your Honor, is that 

this whole notion of the Dutch auction and the buy/sell came up very 

early in the process.  And basically, Mr. Bidsal and Mr. Golshani wanted 

-- if someone wanted to get out, they wanted something that was going 

to be quick and easy.  And they talked about a buy/sell.  And if you look 

at some of the earlier emails where Mr. LeGrand talks about it, he goes, 
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listen, you want a situation where someone make an offer, and then the 

remaining member can either, you know, accept it -- 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  -- or buy it at that and get out.  And this 

notion of the Dutch auction sort of started quite some time ago.  It 

started, I believe, back in June of 2011, and this sort of went on, you 

know, until the very end.   

And so at one point in time, Mr. LeGrand basically came up 

with the specific intent language, which is in one of his drafts and that 

language is what's found its way into the last version of the operating 

agreement that it set forth what the intent was of the parties.  And Mr. 

LeGrand testified to that, Your Honor.  And I kind of read it to you in -- 

you know, during my presentation.   

And it's that language that was certainly relied on by the 

arbitrator and was confirmed by David LeGrand, that it was always the 

parties' intent that a member could make an offer, and then the other 

member would have the right to either accept it or purchase it at that 

amount.  And I mean, that was always the intent.  And if you look at the 

specific intent language that found its way into the final operating 

agreement, and I quoted it, which is on basically -- it's Section 4.2.   

It says, the specific intent of this provision is that once the 

offering member -- and in this case it was Mr. Bidsal presented his or its 

offer to the remaining member, which was CLA, then the remaining 

member shall either buy or sell at the same price offered.  And then 

parenthetically it says, (or FMV if an appraisal is invoked, close paren, 
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and according to the procedures set forth in Section 4. 

And at the end it says, in the case that the remaining 

member decides to purchase, then the offering member, which is Mr. 

Bidsal in this case, shall be obligated to sell his or its membership 

interest to the remaining member, which was CLA. 

And, Your Honor, it was that language -- that specific intent 

language, which was always contemplated by this agreement.  That was 

what Mr. Bidsal and Mr. Golshani wanted from the very beginning.  And 

if you take a look at the emails that were referred to by Mr. Shapiro, you 

can see it.  You can see how that was always the case.   

Now I will tell you, in our brief, pages 23 [sic] through 23, we 

go through in detail -- 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  -- the evolution of the language, all right.  

And so from the very beginning there was always this notion of a quick 

and dirty out.  LeGrand is the one who talked about a buy/sell or also the 

Dutch auction, and then he's the one who talked about it.  And this 

concept of the Dutch auction was always in the -- it was always in the 

agreement.  It was in the final agreement, the specific intent language, 

because that was what he referred to as the Dutch auction. 

Now what he did say at one point in time is that that concept 

is a little more complicated, and the reason why is because if you look at 

the operating agreement the capital contributions were different.  Mr. -- 

I'm sorry, CLA's capital contribution was 70 percent, Bidsal's was 30 

percent, although they each had a 50 percent membership.  And so what 
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Mr. LeGrand said is that, that simple Dutch auction doesn't work because 

you have the different capital accounts.  And what happens is Mr. 

Golshani and Mr. Bidsal took that concept of what Mr. LeGrand talked 

about, and then they worked through together, language to address that.   

And if you look at Section 4.2, and nobody disagrees with 

this, there's the formula for determining the sales price.  And it says, fair 

market -- FMV minus COP, which is fair market value versus cost of 

property, times .5, plus capital contribution of the selling member at the 

time of the purchasing property, minus prorated liability.  So basically, it 

takes into consideration the very capital accounts.  And that's what 

happened.   

But the concept of the Dutch auction never changed.  It was 

always, you have an offering member, you have the remaining member, 

and the remaining member can either sell at the offering member's 

price, and in this case it was determined by Mr. Bidsal with his $5 million 

valuation, or he could say, no, I want to buy it at that price.  And so that 

concept was always in there from the very beginning.  It's just -- it was 

just the change with respect to the, how do you deal with the capital 

accounts.  And they were different.  And that's what Mr. LeGrand got to. 

Does that answer your question, Your Honor?   

THE COURT:  It does from your perspective.  Do you wish to 

be heard?   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT:  Same question, different response.  Go ahead.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  I do.  And let me just -- I'm going to walk 

Your Honor through it really quick, because I know this is an important 

part of what we're here to discuss today.   

Mr. Garfinkel points to pages 13 through 23, arguing that that 

answers all of the questions, and yet all it does is support our argument.  

When you look at pages 13 to 23 of their brief -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- when you get there -- okay.  I'm on page 

13.  This is additional supporting Judge Haberfeld's findings, and he 

goes in and there's -- he goes all the way back to June 17th, 2011, when 

Jeff Chain provided CLA's principal Benjamin Golshani with the form 

operating agreement.  All right.  That was way early on, right?   

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  That was rejected.  And then they take you 

through the history.  David LeGrand gets involved.  When you look on 

page 15, they talk about an August 18th, event that occurred, which is 

well before Ben Golshani's language.  And then you turn to page 16, and 

now we're at September 16th.  I'm looking at line 24, on page 16. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  They're talking about a September 16th 

email.  And if you turn to page 17, line 13, they're talking about a 

September 19th email.  And then they kind of just disappear.   

Well, that is the problem is that they are focusing on what 

happened prior to September 22nd, when Benjamin Golshani sent his 
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language.  But everything changed at that moment.  Nobody was happy 

with the language that David LeGrand was proposing.  If Your Honor -- 

David LeGrand proposed one, two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight 

different versions, Exhibits F, G, H, I, J, K, L, and M, are all versions of 

the operating agreement that were produced by David LeGrand prior to 

Ben Golshani's language.   

And if Your Honor looks at Exhibit N, because that was the 

last version that David LeGrand proposed.  Then if you look at Appendix 

394 -- and just for context this is a September 20th, 2011, email from 

David LeGrand to Shawn and Ben.  Please find attached the revised 

operating agreement with the new offer for Section 5, which sets forth 

the Dutch auction, okay. 

So let's go look at that.  You look at the language -- and this 

goes on for pages.  It goes from 394 all the way to 396.  And he proposes 

all of this language that does not end up in the operating agreement, 

which is Exhibit O.  The parties trashed it.  They eliminated it.  And so all 

of this discussion of David LeGrand up to September 20th, quite frankly, 

is irrelevant, because on September 22nd, Benjamin Golshani sends an 

email.  Shawn:  enclosed please find a rough draft of what I came up 

with.  He doesn't say modification of David LeGrand's language.  He says 

I came up with this.   

And this language ultimately supplants and replaces the 

three pages of language that was David LeGrand's most recent attempt.  

That's what the evidence shows.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  So then, counsel, comparing that,  
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right -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  So comparing Appendix 390 -- does most of 

396, D00301, turn out to be incorporated into Appendix 429, which is 

Exhibit O, the actual signed operating agreement?   

MR. SHAPIRO:  I'm sorry, I've got to get back to 396.  Bear 

with me. 

THE COURT:  396 is what you were just referencing.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  You were referencing 394 and 396. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  No, it doesn't.   

THE COURT:  Is there any redline that shows the distinction 

between what is pages 394 -- Appendix 394 to 396, versus what ends up 

becoming in the operating agreement? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  There isn't, because it was a wholesale swap 

out.  I mean, the redline would be delete, delete, delete, delete, delete, 

new, and the new is Ben Golshani's language.  That's what the new was.   

I mean, if you look under Exhibit M, which was David 

LeGrand's last version -- 

THE COURT:  Right, which is where I was at. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Right.   

THE COURT:  Appendix 396.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  He has Section 4, procedure for right of first 

refusal and that just does on and on.  All of that language was removed.  

If you compare that to Exhibit O, it just doesn't exhibit.  It was gone.  It's 
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a wholesale swap out.  In fact, it's much shorter.  His was three pages 

long.  What ultimately ended up was approximately one page worth of 

language, and it was Ben Golshani's language.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, just so you know.  I object to 

his argument that it's Ben Golshani's language, because the record does 

not support that.  What the record supports is that Mr. Golshani and Mr. 

Bidsal worked on that language together.  So, anyhow.   

THE COURT:  The differing language, which is marked as 7.2, 

which ends up going into Exhibit O, correct? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  As Section 4.  That's a little confusing, but, 

yes. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  The N and P, which goes into O? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  You're saying M is different than the N 

and P that ends up into O; is that correct? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  M -- yes, that's what I'm saying. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Counsel for CLA, would you agree, 

without saying who was the drafter?   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, I'm not sure on the record. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  No worries.  

MR. GARFINKEL:  I'm not going to agree to that.  I mean, I 

don't agree with his argument, and I think that what we set out -- what 

we set forth -- 

THE COURT:  Sure. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  -- is accurate, Your Honor.   
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THE COURT:  Let me just go back to the simple.  Did anyone 

redline the distinction between the Exhibit M, Bate stamp pages 394 to 

396, as distinct from what ended up becoming in Exhibit O, the actual 

signed operating agreement to see what the distinction in the language 

is?  I know you have arguments on -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  I don't know if it has, but I don't really 

necessarily know if it's relevant in the context of the arbitration, that's all. 

THE COURT:  Sure.  I just didn't see anything which you all 

provided me. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  You certainly provided me a redline version 

between the LeGrand, which was, I think, it's S versus P, but I did not see 

any other redlines that went M versus either N or P.  I only saw -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  There was one other redline.  I apologize, I 

don't see it, but it was not what you're looking for. 

THE COURT:  I'm not saying it should or should not exist.  I 

just didn't recall seeing it -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  -- in the thousands of pages -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  -- I did get.  Now, I just was making sure there 

wasn't something -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  It doesn't exist. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, what I can tell you is I know 

that a lot of emails and versions were produced.  I took Mr. LeGrand's 
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deposition.  I believe they may have had about -- we had about 100 

exhibits -- 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  -- at the arbitration.  And so, you know, 

whatever was there was part of the record.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  No worries.  I just -- I was making sure I 

just didn't miss anything.  I didn't think I did in the thousands of pages 

that I read, but if you want to do -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  I agree, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Huh? 

MR. GARFINKEL:  I agree.  I get it.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  I didn't think I did, but one of you -- 

okay.  So then my other question, counsel for Mr. Bidsal.  Going back to 

the page 339 and 340 of the transcript -- hearing transcript, which is 

referenced on page 7 of -- excuse me, I'm sorry, on page 9, I misspoke, 

paragraph -- page 9 of the arbitrator's decision, paragraph 16, the very 

last sentence.  It's the FMV question I asked a moment ago.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  And I apologize, Your Honor, I do not have -- 

THE COURT:  Well, I can show you my copy that you all gave 

me.  No worries.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  A copy of the arbitrator's award? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  No, of the hearing transcript.  I'm trying to 

find that.   

THE COURT:  No worries.  You all can approach, and I can 

show you what I was going to ask.   
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MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay.  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  It looked like it was Mr. Bidsal's testimony by 

cross examination of Mr. Lewin.  That's all I was going to ask.  So I can 

give you the -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Do you have the Appendix number?  Maybe I 

can find it if you -- what's that? 

THE COURT:  Sure, 898. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  898.  Thank you, Your Honor.  Let me find 

that.   

THE COURT:  898 to 899.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  I'm sorry, Your Honor, my 898 is an invoice.   

THE COURT:  Mine says Appendix (PX)000898. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  All right.  I'm going to have to look at your 

because mine's is Bate stamped different, so I apologize.   

[Pause] 

THE COURT:  Because in the arbitrator's decision it 

references hearing transcript at pp. 339:14 to 340:10, which appeared to 

be the Appendix (PX)898-899. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  And your question about that? 

THE COURT:  My question is, isn't that cross-examination by 

Mr. Lewin of Mr. Bidsal, and I base that on -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  May I see that?  Can I approach, Your 

Honor? 

THE COURT:  Yeah, of course.  Yeah.  Yeah, of course you 

may. 
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MR. SHAPIRO:  I do believe that that does appear right, but -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  This would probably be our -- they did not 

include the entire transcript, Your Honor.  We did.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Cross-examination by Mr. Lewin. 

THE COURT:  I went back to page 331, which is Appendix 

(PX)890, and it said cross-examination continued by Mr. Lewin. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  And it said Mr. Bidsal. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Correct.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  So I was taking that a few pages later, it would 

still  be Mr. Bidsal's testimony. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yeah, more [indiscernible]. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, we included the entire 

transcript -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  -- for the two days. 

THE COURT:  No, no, I appreciate it.  I just -- I went back 

when I -- I was cross-referencing all the transcript cites that you all gave 

me and the various places you gave it to me, so that I could cross-

reference because the FMV in the operating agreement versus the 

hearing transcript. 

So going to my question.  My question is actually a relative 

simple one. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Okay. 
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THE COURT:  The question really was in the argument of, or 

the discussion of FMV, it appeared by the arbitrator's decision on page 9, 

paragraph 16, where he references the hearing transcript, is that he was 

referencing Mr. Bidsal's testimony in support of that proposition of Mr. 

Bidsal's viewpoint of what FMV meant, and so my question was -- that's 

why I went and looked it up, right. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  So when I was hearing your argument today 

on FMV, to the extent if your client testified at a hearing on his 

understanding of FMV, is it not -- are you asserting it wouldn't be 

appropriate for the arbitrator to take Mr. Bidsal's own testimony as to his 

understanding of what FMV meant into account with his decision, or 

were you saying that he was misinterpreting your client's understanding 

of FMV, because he was not taking it straight from -- God bless you -- the 

operating agreement itself? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  There's two answers to your question. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  The first answer is, yes, I do believe he 

misinterpreted a whole lot of evidence and that would be one.  But, 

number two, to the extent that he was relying upon anything outside of 

the four corners of the contract means it's ambiguous.  And if it's 

ambiguous, it should be interpreted against the drafter who is clearly 

Ben Golshani.  That is what the evidence shows. 

And so -- 

THE COURT:  Even if your -- he shouldn't rely on your client's 
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own interpretation of the contract? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  I don't think my -- now, Your Honor, 

admittedly I have not looked at that transcript in I don't know how many 

months.   

THE COURT:  No, I -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  It's not something -- 

THE COURT:  No, I know.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- that I prepared to answer today -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  No worries. 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- and so I'm at somewhat of a loss, but I was 

at the hearing, and I can tell you that I don't believe there was any 

testimony that my client gave that could support the arbitrator's ultimate 

decision.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  As I said, each of the questions I've 

asked, I would give each side an opportunity to respond to. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Spoken like a true advocate, Mr. Shapiro. 

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  And I'll leave it at that, Your Honor, since -- 

THE COURT:  Not towards each other. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  You know what our position is. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I just -- I said each question I would ask, 

I would give you each an opportunity to respond to it, so.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, anything else for me? 

THE COURT:  No.  Those were -- no.  Okay.  Well, I think 

there's two choices that the Court can do.  One, is if you both wanted me 
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to rule today, I would rule today.  If you both were okay with me double 

checking a couple of things in light of the extensive record that you all 

gave me and some of the things that you highlighted for the Court's 

retention today, realizing that, yes, it was thousands of pages, and I have 

a pretty decent memory, but that maybe you might want me to go back 

and look at a couple of different things.  I would be fine doing that as 

well.   

But I'm not intending on giving you all a 20 to 30 page 

decision, because I don't see that this is a 20 to 30 page decision that 

goes through all the law.  I mean, I see that you really -- and I have to -- 

before I go there I really have to ask you all a couple foundational 

questions.   

Do you both agree that, A) this Court has jurisdiction to make 

a determination on the declaratory relief action both to confirm and to 

vacate, or do you either of you contend that this Court doesn't have 

jurisdiction?  I didn't see it in either of your briefs on the no jurisdiction, 

but -- 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, we believe you have 

jurisdiction because this was originally in federal court, and we got it 

dismissed from there because of lack of subject matter jurisdiction.  We 

filed here, because we believe this Court has jurisdiction.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  If you don't have jurisdiction, nobody does.   

MR. GARFINKEL:  That's about right. 

THE COURT:  So I take that as a yes? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes. 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, I mean, I want to make sure no one 

was contending that there was no right of review at all because of the 

arbitration being by the parties' agreement or anything.  So, you know, if 

that was an issue, I would have to address that in said decision, right?  

So if you both agree, then that one's easy.  I don't have to address that. 

So then that means the Court has jurisdiction, and the Court 

really just has to look at the standards of whether it's to affirm or to 

vacate, and which is appropriate in this case based on the totality of the 

thousands of pages of record that the Court has, and the standards 

looked at. 

Now one side has raised federal and one side has raised 

state, as far as the standard in looking at -- with regards to an arbitration 

award and, however, in your oral arguments you both seem to be saying 

that the standard is pretty nearly the same and that the Court really 

could evaluate it under either.  Maybe I'm not hearing that correctly, but I 

wanted to make sure.  

So do you all take a position that the Court should be one 

versus the other, or that regardless of which standard the Court uses, 

that in essence it gets to the same result, or do you wall want an analysis 

under both?  The Court's fine either way.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  I believe, Your Honor, that the Court can 

apply both.  I think they're mutually exclusive.  Clearly, federal law 

applies because of the language of the operating agreement, but I think 

state common law applies as well, and I don't see anything that would 

say that doesn't apply.  And so I think both laws apply. 
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THE COURT:  I didn't see that you argued though that state 

common law gave you a different result.   

MR. SHAPIRO:  No, it doesn't because -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  That's -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  -- they are essentially the same. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I just was -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  -- trying to make sure that nobody wasn't -- at 

least I wanted to hear if either party was contending that the Court 

should be using one versus the other, and that one versus the other 

gives a different result.  That's why -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  I think they both apply, and I think the result 

is the same under both. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, we believe federal law does in 

fact -- based on the Nevada Supreme Court case that we cited in our 

brief, we believe that federal law does apply.  However, we addressed 

both, because they did.  So, you know, if the Court's going to make a 

determination -- 

THE COURT:  So do you think state court gives them any 

different answer?   

MR. GARFINKEL:  We win either way.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  I appreciate the position.  I'm trying to 

narrow down where the -- okay.  So the heart of the dispute is either 

affirming or vacating; is that correct? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes, Your Honor. 
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MR. GARFINKEL:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  It's not the procedural issues that you need the 

Court to be giving an analysis in.  I'm trying to go from the expediency to 

get you back a quick response is really where I'm trying to go without 

having either side not have one of their issues addressed that you think 

is an issues that needs to be addressed.   

Okay.  Is there something I missed or is it just to the heart  

of -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  No. 

THE COURT:  Counsel. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  No, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  I think the more well-reasoned is I go 

back and look at a couple of things in light of some of the questions that 

I've asked and in light of the very eloquent arguments that you each 

have raised, and each of your different perspectives in walking the Court 

through what is extensively and well-argued briefs and record but just to 

go back and refocus on a couple of things in light of each of the gloss 

that you have given to the Court today.  That's what I think makes more 

sense, but if someday -- 

MR. SHAPIRO:  We're find with that, Your Honor. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Your Honor, whatever the Court desires.   

THE COURT:  Well, I'm going to try to by this Friday, because 

I'm actually, for once, not in trial this week, but I can't say that some 

emergency is not going to -- hasn't hit on my doorstep -- well, I guess, 

literal box, not doorstep right, while I've been with you this afternoon, 
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but I'm going to try and get it done by this afternoon.  Anticipate it more 

as a minute order than as a full analysis because of how well briefed this 

is.  Really to reiterate what you all have already said is not going to -- will 

probably be in anyone's best interest, because it will take a lot longer 

than to get to the essence of the resolution that you all want for 

whatever purposes anybody needs to do.  Does that meet with 

everybody's needs? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  It does, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you so very much. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  Thanks, Judge. 

THE COURT:  So if there's nothing further, then stay tuned.  

Thank you for your time, and you'll receive the Court's decision.  Did 

everyone have a full opportunity to argue everything they wished to 

argue? 

MR. SHAPIRO:  Yes. 

MR. GARFINKEL:  I believe so, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you so much.   

[Proceedings concluded at 2:47 p.m.] 

 
 
 
ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the  
audio-visual recording of the proceeding in the above entitled case to the  
best of my ability.   
   
____________________________________ 
Maukele Transcribers, LLC 
Jessica B. Cahill, Transcriber, CER/CET-708 
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DISTR:CT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

IN ttHE MA丁丁ER OF ttHE PETIT10N
OF
CLA PROPERTIES LLC

CASE NO.:A-19-795188-P

DEPARTMEN丁 31

C!VIL ORDER TO STAT:ST:CALLY CLOSE CASE
Upon review ofthis rnatter and 9ood Cause appearing,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED thatthe Clerk ofthe Courtis hereby directed to

statistica‖y close this case forthe fo‖ owing reason:

DISPOSITIONS:
Default Judgment
Judgment on Arbitration
Stipulated Judgment
Summary Judgment
lnvoluntary Dismissal
Motion to Dismiss by Defendant(s)
Stipulated Dismissal
Voluntary Dismissal
Transferred (before trial)
Non-Jury - Disposed After Trial Starts
Non-Jury - Judgment Reached
Jury - Disposed After Trial Starts
Jury - Verdict Reached
Other Manner of Disposition

DATED this 30th day of December,2019.

□
図
□
□
□
□
□
□
□
□
□
□
□
□

JOA凶貿AS.KISHNER
DISttRICT COURtt JUDGE
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James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7907 
jshapiro@smithshapiro.com  
Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 11780 
acannon@smithshapiro.com  
SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
Henderson, Nevada  89074 
702-318-5033 
Attorneys for SHAWN BIDSAL  
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
CLA, PROPERTIES, LLC, a California limited 
liability company, 
 
   Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
SHAWN BIDSAL, an individual, 
 
   Respondent. 
 

 
Case No. A-19-795188-P 
Dept. No. 31 

 

 
NOTICE OF APPEAL 

Notice is hereby given that Respondent SHAWN BIDSAL hereby appeal to the Supreme 

Court of Nevada from the following: 

1) The District Court’s Order Granting Petition for Confirmation of Arbitration Award 

and Entry of Judgment and Denying Respondent’s Opposition and Countermotion to Vacate the 

Arbitrator’s Award, entered on December 16, 2019. 

2) All other orders and rulings made appealable from the foregoing. 

Dated this   9th   day of January, 2020.  

      SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
 
 
         /s/ James E. Shapiro    
       James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 7907 
       Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 11780 
       3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
       Henderson, Nevada  89074 
       Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that I am an employee of SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC, and that on the  9th day 

of January, 2020, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing  NOTICE OF APPEAL, by e-

serving a copy on all parties registered and listed as Service Recipients in Odyssey File & Serve, the 

Court’s on-line, electronic filing website, pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, entered on May 9, 

2014. 
 

 
 /s/ Jennifer Bidwell        
An employee of Smith & Shapiro, PLLC  
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James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7907 
jshapiro@smithshapiro.com  
Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 11780 
acannon@smithshapiro.com  
SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
Henderson, Nevada  89074 
702-318-5033 
Attorneys for SHAWN BIDSAL  
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
CLA, PROPERTIES, LLC, a California limited 
liability company, 
 
   Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
SHAWN BIDSAL, an individual, 
 
   Respondent. 
 

 
Case No. A-19-795188-P 
Dept. No. 31 

 

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 

1. Name of appellants filing this case appeal statement: Respondent SHAWN 

BIDSAL. 

2. Identify the judge issuing the decision, judgment, or order appealed from: The 

Honorable JOANNA S. KISHNER, Dept. No. 31. 

3. Identify each appellant and the name and address of counsel for each appellant:  

Appellant:     SHAWN BIDSAL 

Appellant’s counsel:    JAMES E. SHAPIRO, ESQ. 
SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
Henderson, NV 89074. 
 

4. Identify each respondent and the name and address of respondent counsel, if 

known, for each respondent (if the name of a respondent’s appellate counsel is unknown, 

indicate as much and provide the name and address of that cross-respondent’s trial counsel): 

\ \ \ 
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  Respondent:    CLA, PROPERTIES, LLC,  

a California limited liability company,  
 
  Respondent’s appellate counsel:  Unknown 
 
  Respondent’s trial counsel:   LOUIS E. GARFINKEL, ESQ. 
       LEVINE & GARFINKEL 
       1671 W. Horizon Ridge Pkwy., Suite 230 
       Henderson, NV 89012 

5. Indicate whether any attorney identified above in response to question 3 or 4 is 

not licensed to practice law in Nevada and, if so, whether the district court granted that attorney 

permission to appear under SCR 42 (attach a copy of any district court order granting such 

permission): N/A.  

6. Indicate whether appellant was represented by appointed or retained counsel in 

the district court: retained counsel. 

7. Indicate whether respondent is represented by appointed or retained counsel on 

appeal: retained counsel. 

8. Indicate whether appellant was granted leave to proceed in forma pauperis, and 

the date of entry of the district court order granting such leave: N/A. 

9. Indicate the date the proceedings commenced in the district court (e.g., date 

complaint, indictment, information, or petition was filed): May 21, 2019. 

10. Provide a brief description of the nature of the action and result in the district 

court, including the type of judgment or order being appealed and the relief granted by the 

district court: The underlying dispute revolves around the attempted break-up of a limited liability 

company, Green Valley Commerce, LLC (“Green Valley”), by its members, under the buy-sell 

provisions of Green Valley’s operating agreement (the “OPAG”).  On September 26, 2017, 

Respondent, CLA, PROPERTIES, LLC (“CLAP”), filed a Demand for Arbitration, which ultimately 

resulted in a Final Award being entered on April 5, 2019, in JAMS Arbitration No. 1260004569 (the 

“Arbitration Award”). On April 9, 2019, Appellant SHAWN BIDSAL (“Bidsal”) filed a Motion to 

Vacate Arbitration Award in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada (the “Federal 

Case”).  The Federal Case was dismissed for lack of subject matter jurisdiction on June 24, 2019.  On 

May 21, 2019, CLAP filed a Petition for Confirmation of Arbitration Award and Entry of Judgment 
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in the Eighth Judicial District Court, in and for, Clark County, Nevada.  On July 15, 2019, Bidsal filed 

his Opposition to CLA’s Petition for Confirmation of Arbitration Award and Entry of Judgment and 

Counterpetition to Vacate Arbitration Award.  On December 6, 2019, the district court entered its 

Order Granting Petition for Conformation of Arbitration Award and Entry of Judgment and Denying 

Respondent’s Opposition and Counterpetition to Vacate the Arbitrator’s Award (the “District Court’s 

Order”), wherein the district court upheld and confirmed the Arbitration Award.  The Notice of Entry 

of the District Court’s Order was filed December 16, 2019.  Appellant Bidsal is appealing the District 

Court’s Order.  

11. Indicate whether the case has previously been the subject of an appeal to or 

original writ proceeding in the Supreme Court and, if so, the caption and Supreme Court docket 

number of the prior proceeding: This case has not previously been the subject of an appeal to or 

original writ proceedings in the Supreme Court.  

12. Indicate whether this appeal involves child custody or visitation: This case does not 

involve child custody or visitation.  

13. If this is a civil case, indicate whether this appeal involves the possibility of 

settlement: This is a civil case and settlement is possible.  

Dated this   9th   day of January, 2020.  

      SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
 
 
         /s/ James E. Shapiro    
       James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 7907 
       Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 11780 
       3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
       Henderson, Nevada  89074 
       Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that I am an employee of SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC, and that on the  9th day 

of January, 2020, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing  CASE APPEAL STATEMENT, 

by e-serving a copy on all parties registered and listed as Service Recipients in Odyssey File & Serve, 

the Court’s on-line, electronic filing website, pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, entered on May 

9, 2014. 
 

 
 /s/ Jennifer Bidwell        
An employee of Smith & Shapiro, PLLC  
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James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7907 
jshapiro@smithshapiro.com  
Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 11780 
acannon@smithshapiro.com  
SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
702-318-5033 
Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal  
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
CLA PROPERTIES, LLC, a California limited 
liability company, 
 
   Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
SHAWN BIDSAL, an individual, 
 
   Respondent. 
 

 
Case No. A-19-795188-P 
Dept. No. 31 
 
Hearing Requested 
 

 
RESPONDENT’S MOTION FOR STAY PENDING APPEAL 

Respondent SHAWN BIDSAL, an individual (“Bidsal”), by and through his attorneys, 

SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC, hereby submits his Motion for Stay Pending Appeal. (the “Motion”) 

This Motion is made and based upon the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, 

the attached affidavit and exhibit and any oral argument the Court may wish to entertain in the 

premises. 

Dated this   17th  day of January, 2020 
      SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
 
 

         /s/ James E. Shapiro    
       James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 7907 
       Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 11780 
       3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
       Henderson, Nevada 89074 
       Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal 
 

 

Case Number: A-19-795188-P

Electronically Filed
1/17/2020 9:13 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

Petitioner CLA PROPERTIES, LLC (“CLAP”) and Respondent Bidsal are the sole members 

of Green Valley Commerce, LLC (“GVC”).  See Declaration of Shawn Bidsal, a true and correct 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference. GVC 

owns and manages commercial property in Las Vegas, Nevada.  Id. CLAP is solely owned by its 

principal Benjamin Golshani (“Golshani”). Id. On or about June 15, 2011 CLAP and Bidsal entered 

into an Operating Agreement (“OPAG”) for GVC.  Id. From its inception, GVC’s primary business 

has been the ownership and operation of commercial properties.  See Exhibit “A”.  

On or about July 7, 2017 Bidsal sent CLAP a written offer to purchase CLAP’s share of 

GVC.  After that July 7, 2017 correspondence was received, CLAP and Bidsal reached an impasse 

as to how the OPAG directed a buy-out of interests for GVC (the “Impasse”).   

From on or about May 8, 2018 to May 9, 2018 Bidsal and CLAP participated in an 

arbitration to resolve the Impasse.  Arbitrator Stephen E. Haberfeld (“Arbitrator”) was appointed to 

hear the matter.  Nearly eleven months later, on or about April 5, 2019, the Arbitrator entered an 

arbitration award in favor of CLAP (the “Arbitrator’s Award”).   Under the Arbitrator’s Award, 

CLAP is required to pay well over One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) to Bidsal for Bidsal’s 

membership interest in GVC.  See Exhibit “A”.  

On May 21, 2019, CLAP filed a Petition for Confirmation of Arbitration Award and Entry of 

Judgment (the “Petition”).  Bidsal, filed an Opposition to CLAP’s Petition for Confirmation of 

Arbitration Award and Entry of Judgment and filed a Counterpetition to Vacate Arbitration Award 

on July 15, 2019 (the “Counterpetition”). 

The Petition and the Counterpetition were heard on November 12, 2019 in the District Court.  

On December 6, 2019 the District Court rendered a decision granting the Petition (“District Court 

Order”).  The Notice of Entry of the District Court Order was entered on December 16, 2019.  

\ \ \ 

\ \ \ 
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On January 9, 2020 Bidsal filed a Notice of Appeal of the District Court Order.  For the 

reasons set forth below, Bidsal requests that the Court enter a stay pending appeal of the District 

Court Order. 

II. 

STATEMENT OF AUTHORITIES 

A. LEGAL STANDARD. 

NRAP 8 allows a party to seek a stay of any order pending an appeal of the same and 

requires that the motion be first brought in front of the district court judge. NRCP 62, which governs 

requests for a stay pending appeal, states in pertinent part: 

(d) Stay Pending an Appeal.  
 
(1) By Supersedeas Bond.  If an appeal is taken, the appellant may obtain a stay by 
supersedeas bond, except in an action described in Rule 62(a)(2).  The bond may be 
given upon or after filing the notice of appeal or after obtaining the order allowing the 
appeal.  The stay is effective when the supersedeas bond is filed.   
 
(2) By Other Bond or Security.  If an appeal is taken, a party is entitled to a stay by 
providing a bond or other security.  Unless the court orders otherwise, the stay takes 
effect when the court approves the bond or other security and remains in effect for the 
time specified in the bond or other security. 

NRCP 62(d).  

As NRCP 62(d) indicates, a stay pending appeal is granted as a matter of routine so long as a 

supersedeas bond has been posted.  NRCP 62(d). Further, a supersedeas bond is not required before 

a stay will be granted, so long as some other bond or other security is provided. Id. 

The amount of the bond is left to the discretion of the Court, but ordinarily is in an amount 

equal to the amount of the judgment.  McCulloch v. Jeakins, 99 Nev. 122, 123, 659 P.2d 302, 303 

(1983).  However, “[a] district court, in its discretion, may provide for a bond in a lesser amount, or 

may permit security other than a bond, when unusual circumstances exist and so warrant.”  Id.  

In deciding whether to issue a stay, the Nevada Supreme Court considers the following 

factors: (1) whether the object of the appeal or writ petition will be defeated if the stay is denied; (2) 

whether appellant/petitioner will suffer irreparable or serious injury if the stay is denied; (3) whether 

respondent/real party in interest will suffer irreparable or serious injury if the stay is granted; and (4) 

whether appellant/petitioner is likely to prevail on the merits in the appeal or writ petition. Hansen v. 
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Eighth Judicial Dist. Court ex rel. Cnty. of Clark, 116 Nev. 650, 657, 6 P.3d 982, 986 (2000).  See 

also NRAP Rule 8(c).   

B. A STAY OF ENFORCEMENT OF THE ORDER IS APPROPRIATE. 

Considering the four factors identified in Hansen, a stay would be appropriate in this case. 

First, the purpose of the appeal is to determine whether Bidsal has an obligation to abide by the 

Arbitrator’s decision, confirmed by the District Court.  However, the District Court Order requires 

the transfer of Bidsal’s interest in GVC to occur within 14 days of the Judgment. Thus, the object of 

the appeal would be defeated absent a stay because Bidsal would be required by the District Court 

Order to transfer his shares before the court that hears the appeal determines whether such an 

transfer as ordered by the District Court is required. 

Second, Bidsal will suffer irreparable harm if the stay is denied. If the transfer of shares in 

GVC occurs and the appeal results in a reversal of the Arbitrator’s decision, it will be virtually 

impossible to undo the transfer.  See Exhibit “A”.  This is in part, because Bidsal, who is currently 

managing the property owned by GVC, would lose the ability to manage GVC and its properties if 

the transfer occurs prior to the appeal. Id. The value of any commercial property, including GVC’s 

commercial property, is directly linked to its management.  Id. By losing the ability to manage GVC 

and its properties pending the appeal, Bidsal will suffer irreparable harm. Id. 

Third, respondent will not suffer any injury if the stay is granted. If the Order is confirmed on 

appeal, Respondent will merely be required to wait a little longer to receive Bidsal’s shares.  Bidsal 

has managed the real property that is GVC’s primary asset from the beginning, including while this 

matter has worked its way through the legal system.  Bidsal has proven capable and willing to 

continue to manage the property for GVC. CLAP will not in any way be divested of its shares in 

GVC simply due to a stay.  Further, CLAP will suffer no monetary harm.  While the Arbitrator 

awarded CLAP attorneys fees, CLAP can easily offset the full amount of the award from the 

purchase price which CLAP ultimately pays to Bidsal for Bidsal’s shares (should the Arbitrator’s 

Award be upheld).  Because confirming the Arbitrator’s Award will require a significant payment of 

money from CLAP to Bidsal, there is literally no monetary risk to CLAP as CLAP can offset any 

amounts owed by Bidsal to CLAP from CLAP’s ultimate payment to Bidsal.   
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Fourth, while no appeal is sure to be successful, under these circumstances, the appeal is 

warranted, and this appeal has as much chance of success as any other appeal.  

Based upon the foregoing, a stay should be granted.  

C. THE REQUIREMENT OF SUPERSEDEAS BOND SHOULD BE WAIVED. 

While NRCP 62 generally requires the posting of a supersedeas bond before a stay can be 

imposed, under these circumstances, the requirement of a bond should be waived. 

A district court has discretion in identifying the type of security required before a stay will be 

entered. See NRCP 62(d); See also McCulloch, 99 Nev. 122. The purpose of requiring a supersedeas 

bond “is to protect the judgment creditor’s ability to collect the judgment if it is affirmed by 

preserving the status quo and preventing prejudice to the creditor arising from the stay.”  Nelson v. 

Heer, 121 Nev. 832, 122 P.3d 1252(2005); See also V-1 Oil Co. v. People, 799 P.2d 1199, 1203 

(Wyo. 1990) (“The essence of posting a supersedeas bond by an appellant following judgment entry 

is to avoid a mootness challenge that might otherwise arise if the judgment is paid before appeal is 

taken ....”) cited by the Nevada Supreme Court in Wheeler Springs Plaza, LLC v. Beemon, 119 Nev. 

260, 71 P. 3d 1258 (Nev. 2003).     

In this case, the Arbitration Award and District Court Order require CLAP to essentially pay 

Two Million, Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) to Bidsal1.  Because CLAP is the one 

who, under the terms of the Arbitration Award, is required to pay $2.5M to Bidsal, CLAP will not be 

prejudiced by any stay as it will simply give CLAP more time to come up with the money.  Further, 

to the extent that CLAP incurs any harm from the appeal, the monetary amount can simply be 

deducted from the amount which CLAP ultimately must pay to Bidsal.  

Because the purpose of the bond “is to protect the judgment creditor’s ability to collect the 

judgment if it is affirmed by preserving the status quo and preventing prejudice to the creditor 

arising from the stay,” and because, under the unique facts of this case, CLAP is already fully 

 
1 The Arbitration Award found that Bidsal’s offer based upon a $5,000,000 fair market value was enforceable 
against Bidsal by CLAP.  Because Bidsal owns 50% of GVC, on its face, CLAP would have to pay Bidsal 
50% of the $5,000,000 of the fair market value, or $2,500,000.  While there are adjustments which need to be 
made before the final payment is paid, the point is that at the end of the day, CLAP will owe Bidsal 
significantly more than any monetary harm CLAP will incur while the appeal is pending.   
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protected by virtue of the payment which CLAP will owe to Bidsal should the Arbitration Award be 

upheld, requiring a bond will not further the reason for the bond in the first place, nor will it provide 

any additional security to CLAP, who is already fully protected.  See Nelson v. Heer, 121 Nev. 832, 

122 P.3d 1252(2005).  In fact, requiring any type of bond at this point will only prejudice Bidsal, 

without providing any tangible benefit to CLAP.   

Because the purpose and intent of a supersedeas bond is entirely missing, Bidsal requests 

that, under these unique circumstances, the requirement of a supersedeas bond be waived.  

Alternatively, the amount should be nominal.   

III. 

CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing points and authorities, the Bidsal respectfully requests that the 

Court grant this Motion for Stay. 

Dated this   17th day of January, 2020 

     SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
 
 

        /s/ James E. Shapiro     
      James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
      Nevada Bar No. 7907 
      Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
      Nevada Bar No. 11780 
      3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
      Henderson, Nevada 89074 
      Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that I am an employee of SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC, and that on the   17th  

day of January, 2020, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing  RESPONDENT’S 

MOTION FOR STAY PENDING APPEAL, by e-serving a copy on all parties registered and 

listed as Service Recipients in Odyssey File & Serve, the Court’s on-line, electronic filing website, 

pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, entered on May 9, 2014. 
 

 
/s/ Jennifer Bidwell        
An employee of Smith & Shapiro, PLLC  
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James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7907 
jshapiro@smithshapiro.com  
Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 11780 
acannon@smithshapiro.com  
SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
702-318-5033 
Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal  
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
CLA, PROPERTIES, LLC, a California limited 
liability company, 
 
   Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
SHAWN BIDSAL, an individual, 
 
   Respondent. 
 

 
Case No. A-19-795188-P 
Dept. No. 31 
 

 
RESPONDENT’S OPPOSITION TO PETITIONER CLA PROPERTIES, LLC’S MOTION 

FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS 
 

COMES NOW Respondent SHAWN BIDSAL (“Bidsal”), by and through his attorneys, 

SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC, hereby files his Opposition to Petitioner CLA PROPERTIES, LLC’S 

(“CLAP”) Motion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs (the “Motion”). 

This Opposition is made and based upon the papers and pleadings on file herein, the 

attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and any oral argument the Court may wish to 

entertain in the premises. 

Dated this 17th day of January, 2020 
      SMITH & SHAPIRO, PLLC 
 

         /s/ James E. Shapiro    
       James E. Shapiro, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 7907 
       Aimee M. Cannon, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 11780 
       3333 E. Serene Ave., Suite 130 
       Henderson, Nevada 89074 
       Attorneys for Respondent, Shawn Bidsal 

Case Number: A-19-795188-P

Electronically Filed
1/17/2020 10:40 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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